
 
 
 

Mr S Hearse 
Chief Executive 

Torridge District Council 

Riverbank House 

Bideford 
Devon 
EX39 2QG 

 
Tel : Bideford (01237) 428700 

 

 

 

 
  

 

MEETING OF AUDIT & GOVERNANCE  
COMMITTEE 

On: Tuesday 31 May 2022 At: 2.00 pm 

Venue: Caddsdown Business Support Centre - Bideford 

 
Temporary measures during the Coronavirus Pandemic: 

Members of the public attending meetings or taking part in the public forum are advised that 
all Audit & Governance meetings taking place during the Covid-19 Pandemic will be filmed for live or 

subsequent broadcast via the YouTube channel - https://tinyurl.com/TorridgeYouTube 

 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 

 

To: Councillor P Hackett (Chair) 
Councillor R Craigie (Vice-Chair) 
Councillors: D Bushby, K Hepple, C Hodson and R Lock 

 
Non elected Members:  Vacancy 

 
Members are requested to turn off their mobile phones for the duration of the meeting 

 

AGENDA 
PART I - (OPEN SESSION) 

  

1.   Apologies For Absence  

 To receive apologies for absence for the meeting. 
 

2.   Minutes (Pages 3 - 9) 

 Confirmation of Minutes of the Meeting held on Tuesday 18th January 2022. 

 

3.   Declaration of Interests  

 Members with interests should refer to the agenda item and describe the nature of 

their interest when the item is considered. 
 



 
 

 

4.   Agreement of Agenda Items Part I and II  

5.   Urgent Matters Brought Forward with the Permission of the Chair  

6.   DAP Audit Reports Issued to Date (Pages 10 - 15) 

 To receive a report from the Devon Audit Partnership Manager.  
 

7.   Audit Plan 2022-2023 (Pages 16 - 22) 

 To receive a report from the Devon Audit Partnership Manager.  

 

8.   Annual Internal Audit Report 2021-22 (Pages 23 - 37) 

 To receive a report from the Devon Audit Partnership Manager.  

 

9.   Audit Actions (Pages 38 - 39) 

 To receive a report from the Section 151 Officer.  

 

10.   Grant Thornton Update Report (Pages 40 - 60) 

 To receive a report from External Auditors, Grant Thornton.  
 

11.   Grant Thornton External Audit Plan (Pages 61 - 83) 

 To receive a report from External Auditors, Grant Thornton.  
 

12.   Grant Thornton - informing the audit risk assessment (Pages 84 - 112) 

 To receive a report from External Auditors, Grant Thornton.  
 

13.   Forward Plan (Page 113) 

14.   Exclusion of the Public  

 The Chair to move: 
 
That the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting because of the likely 

disclosure of exempt information by virtue of paragraph 3 of Part I and paragraph 10 
of Part 2 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972. 

 

15.   PART II (CLOSED SESSION)  

16.   Risk Register  

 To receive a verbal update from the Section 151 Officer.  

 

 Meeting Organiser: Democratic Services 
 

 



1 
 

 
 

TORRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE MEETING 
 

Caddsdown Business Support Centre - Bideford 
 

Tuesday, 18 January 2022 - 2.00 pm 

 
 

PRESENT Councillor P Hackett (Chair) 
 

 Councillor R Craigie (Vice-Chair) 

 
 Councillors D Bushby, R Clarke (substitute for R Lock), K Hepple, 

N Laws and P Watson (Substitute for P Pennington) 
 

ALSO PRESENT S Hearse - Chief Executive 

 S Dorey - Head of Legal & Governance (Monitoring 
Officer) 

 D Heyes - Finance Manager (Section 151 Officer) 
 C Dobbs - Service Improvement Officer 
 T Vanstone - Senior Electoral & Democratic Services 

Officer 
 K Hewlett - Electoral and Democratic Services Officer 

 
 J Masci - Key Audit Partner, Grant Thornton 
 P Midlemass - Devon Audit Partnership Manager 

1.    APOLOGIES  
 

Apologies were received from Councillor Pennington, Councillor Watson was 
present as his substitute.  
 

Apologies were received from Councillor Lock and Councillor Clarke was present 
as her substitute. 

2.    MINUTES  
 

Confirmation of Minutes of the Meeting held on the 5th October 2021.  

 
Chair ran through the minutes of the meeting page by page. Julie Masci raised a 

typo of her surname on Page 7 of the minutes.  
 
It was proposed by Councillor Hackett, seconded by Councillor Bushby and –  

 
Resolved: 

 
That the minutes of the meeting from 5th October 2021, with the above amendment, 
be agreed as a correct record.  

 
Vote: For 4,  Against  0, Abstained 2 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



2 
 

 
 

3.    DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 

There were no declarations of interest. 
 

4.    AGREEMENT OF AGENDA ITEMS PART I AND II  
 

It was confirmed by the Section 151 Officer that there were no Part II items.  

 
5.    URGENT MATTERS BROUGHT FORWARD WITH THE PERMISSION OF 

THE CHAIR  
 

There were no urgent matters brought forward. 

 
6.    GRANT THORNTON UPDATE REPORT  

 

Chair welcomed Julie Masci (Key Audit Partner, Grant Thornton) to the meeting, 
and she provided members with a summary of the Progress Update Report for 

2020-21 audit cycle.  
 

It was explained that the two areas of work ongoing since the last Committee on 5th 
October. 
 

One area is the finalisation of work of the financial statement audit. Members were 
directed to page 15 of the report, which set out the areas of outstanding work since 

the last meeting.  The Key Audit Partner confirmed that since the writing of the 
report further progress had been made on the remaining outstanding work stated in 
the report.   

 
The Key Audit Partner went on to provide an update on the current status of this 

work and provided members with some context.  
 
It was explained that Grant Thornton had sought some further support in relation to 

work on the council’s valuer report, due to material valuation uncertainty in relation 
to Leisure.  It was explained that this is being picked up within other Local 

Authorities for a variety of different asset types and Grant Thornton are seeking 
further clarification and advice as a result.  
 

It was confirmed that discussion had taken place with Torridge’s Section 151 
Officer earlier in the week to clarify the position and finalise the wording of opinion 

this week, once this is completed it was confirmed that Grant Thornton would then 
be in a position to issue the final opinion.   
 

The Key Audit Partner went on to highlight the second area of outstanding work for 
the audit and directed members to page 16 of the report.  

 
It was explained that the work on the Housing Benefit returns to DWP is 
progressing well and are due to finalise and sign off this piece of work this week.  It 

was confirmed that no significant issues have come out of the testing Grant 
Thornton have completed.   

 

Page 4



3 
 

 
 

The Key Audit Partner directed members to page 17 of the report, which highlights 
the audit deliverables for the 2021 cycle.  It was explained that, for completeness, 

the deliverables for planning of 2022 cycle had also been added. 
 

Members were directed to some of the wider sector updates and public reports, 
which may be useful for members.  
 

Members had the opportunity to ask questions. 
 

A discussion regarding the difference of opinion on leisure centre valuation took 
place. Members raised concerns regarding the timeliness of this issue being raised 
with Torridge.  The Key Audit Partner explained the position of Grant Thornton and 

explained the approach that had been taken since the last Audit Committee in 
October. She also clarified the work and consultation required for Grant Thornton to 

make a judgement.  The detail around the valuer’s position was also explained to 
members.   
 

The Key Audit Partner took on board feedback around the timeliness of this issue 
and will look to improve the situation going forward. It was stated that Grant 

Thornton are looking for a quick resolution and are close to sign off.  
 
Members noted the report. 

 
7.    FRAUD ASSESSMENT  

 

Paul Middlemass, Devon Audit Partnership (DAP) Manager, joined the Committee 
remotely to present members with results of an annual assessment against the 

CIPFA code of practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption. 
 

The DAP Manager provided a summary of the report and the findings for members.  
 
Appendix A on page 39 of the agenda pack was highlighted to members. It was 

explained that this provides members with the actual assessment and the DAP 
Manager ran through some of the important elements of the document with 

members.  
 
In summary the assessment concluded that the arrangements in place at Torridge 

are largely effective and appropriate.  
 

Members queried why the table of estimated local government fraud loss was dated 
2013. The DAP Manager explained these were the most current estimates CIPFA 
had provided.  

 
Members raised paragraph 9 and 10 with the DAP Manager and questioned if 

Torridge was effective at finding cases of fraud, and if fraud is discovered is the 
council robust in challenging.  
 

The DAP Manager confirmed there were no instances of fraud found that would 
have been published in the press.  Members were directed to the conclusion of the 

Page 5



4 
 

 
 

report which states that the self-assessment provides good assurance that sound 
and effective fraud prevention arrangements are in operation. 

 
Members queried if this work was paid for and it was confirmed that it was paid for 

as part of the package of internal auditing that DAP complete for Torridge.  
 
Members noted the report. 

 
8.    REPORTS ISSUED TO DATE  

 

The DAP Manager presented members with a summary of the internal audits 
completed since the last committee meeting. He also highlighted a recent external 

assessment completed on DAP against the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 
– this returned a ‘generally conforms’ marking, which is the highest of the mark ings. 

The report will be going to the DAP Managers board, which members of this 
committee sit on.   
 

There were 5 internal audits reports completed, with the following assurances 
made:  

 
Substantial Assurance Payroll 
Reasonable Assurance Corporate Health and Safety 

Recruitment Selection and Retention  
Emergency Planning 

Limited Assurance  Harbour Services 
 
The DAP Manager went on to summarise the findings for members. 

 
Payroll 

The move to a new payroll system was highlighted (ITrent) and it was confirmed 
that core controls were found to be in place. This new system was also seen to be 
having a beneficial impact on council operations and efficiency.   

 
Corporate Health & Safety 

It was confirmed that arrangements are in place to meet responsibilities in this area, 
though some work was identified around inspections – thought this could be linked 
to the post-Covid impact of not working within the office.  Torridge have since 

looked to recruit an additional officer to meet this need and support Emergency 
Planning.   

 
Harbour Services 
It was recognised that staffing related issues were the main concern in terms of the 

rating of this audit. The DAP Manager stated he was confident management had a 
good plan in place to meet the areas of weakness raised, and these issues are 

being delt with quickly.  At a more strategic level the audit highlights there could be 
more concentration on the costs and benefits of the harbour.   
 

Recruitment, Retention and Selection 
The audit concentrated on the process and DAP were content that processes are in 

place to recruit people in fair and open competition.  It was recognised that the HR 

Page 6



5 
 

 
 

team provide a good service to managers. This was also one area where the 
benefit of ITrent was seen – making the recruitment process speedier and more 

efficient.  
 

Emergency Planning 
The auditors were satisfied with the arrangements in place and it was recognised 
there was a lot of work to be done and there have been no incidents.  There were 

some minor recommendations to review the Emergency Plan and Business 
Continuity Plan and it was agreed that the Emergency Plan could be reviewed by 

the Lead Member as it’s a statutory requirement to have a plan.  
 
Members noted the report. 

 
9.    PROGRESS AGAINST AUDIT ACTIONS  

 

The Section 151 Officer presented a progress report on the audit action for 2021 to 
Committee Members. It was explained that these actions came about as a result of 

the internal audits completed by Devon Audit Partnership (DAP). 
 

It was confirmed that of the 92 agreed actions 50 had been completed, 30 actions 
that were open and in time, and 12 actions were late. 
 

The Section 151 Officer highlighted the table on page 54 of the agenda pack, which 
provided members with a summary of the late actions and highlighted the updates 

provided by Managers.  
 
Members noted the report.  

 
10.    CODE OF GOVERNANCE  

 

The Service Improvement Officer presented the report for approval and explained 
this was an annual review of governance arrangements, which was linked to the 

statement agreed at the last meeting. 
 

The Service Improvement Officer went on to highlight the table on page 56 of the 
agenda pack.  It was explained this summarises the assessment of the council’s 
governance arrangements.  The Service Improvement Officer highlighted the 2 

areas that are not 100 percent compliant and provided members with some context. 
 

The Service Improvement Officer went on to highlight the diagram on page 59, 
which explained good governance and page 70, which explained the Council’s 
roles and responsibilities in terms of governance.  A small change to the wording 

was highlighted – members would be changed to Full Council, it was explained that 
Full Council is a strong governance body.  

 
It was confirmed this document would be published on the website alongside the 
statement. 

 
Member thanks the Service Improvement Officer for the report.  

 

Page 7



6 
 

 
 

It was proposed by Councillor Hackett, seconded by Councillor Watson and  
 

Resolved: 
That the revised Code of Conduct be approved.   

 
Vote: For - unanimous. 
 

11.    APPOINTMENT OF EXTERNAL AUDITORS  
 

The Section 151 Officer provided members with a summary of the procurement 
process that was followed to appoint Grant Thornton as External Auditors for 
Torridge.   

 
It was explained that the current arrangements were coming to an end at the end of 

the 2022-23 financial year and there were 3 options available to Torridge at this 
time.  
  

Three options highlighted to members:  
• To appoint its own auditor, which requires it to follow the procedure set out in 

the Act. 
• To act jointly with other authorities to procure an auditor following the 

procedures in the Act. 

• To opt in to the national auditor appointment scheme administered by a body 
designated by the Secretary of State as the ‘appointing person’. The body 

currently designated for this role is Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited 
(PSAA).  

 

Following a discussion regarding the current market for external auditing and the 
types of options open to the council it agreed the committee would recommend 

Torridge opt into the procurement scheme.  
 
It was proposed by Councillor Watson, seconded Cllr Clarke and –  

 
Resolved: 

That members of the Committee recommend to Full Council that Torridge opts into 
the PSAA procurement of external audit services. 
 

Vote: For - unanimous 
 

12.    FORWARD PLAN  
 

Members noted the forward plan.  

 
 

 
The meeting commenced at 2.00 pm and closed at 2.50 pm 
 

 
Chair:  Date:  

 

Page 8



7 
 

 
 

 

Page 9



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

1 
 

  

REPORT OF DAP Audit Partnership 

To: Audit & Governance Committee 

Subject: Audit Reports Issued to Date 

Date: March 2022   

 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT:  To provide a summary of the internal audit 
reports issued since the last Audit and Governance Committee to enable 
members to discuss any matters they wish to raise. 
  

 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 

The Audit & Governance Committee have requested a regular summary of internal audit reports 
issued. This is to provide an opportunity for discussion and to raise queries related to the reports.  

 
As members receive a full copy of the internal audit report upon release, they are encouraged to 
raise any significant concerns they may have with the Auditor at that time. This summary report 
gives an added opportunity for Members as a group to discuss related matters. 

 
This report includes all final internal audit reports issued to date that have not been previously 
reported to the Committee.  

 
2. REPORT 

A summary of final reports issued to date and not included in previous committee reports is 
included at Appendix A.  

 
There are five audit reports to note: 
 

 Estate Management. 

 Main Accounting Service. 

 Building Control. 

 Strategic Planning 

 Food Safety 

 

  
  

3. IMPLICATIONS 

 
Legal Implications 
None. 
 

Financial Implications 
None. 
 

Human Resources Implications 
None. 
 
Sustainability Implications 
None. 
 

Page 10

Agenda Item 6



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

2 
 

Equality/Diversity 
None. 
 
 
Risk Management 

The Risk Based Internal Audit Plan is designed to provide robust coverage of the key risks faced by 
the Council each year. It is developed in consultation with management and approved by members. 
 
Each internal audit report provides the following key information: 
Assurance level – providing an overall opinion on the audit area. 
Acton plan – including audit recommendations (where applicable) and management responses. 
 
Reported issues are assigned a priority rating of high, medium, or low, based on the perceived 
impact and likelihood as established within the corporate risk matrix. 
 
The report may also include ‘opportunity’ findings, which are suggested courses of action perceived 
to add value and included for consideration. 
 
Low priority or housekeeping matters are reported separately to operational management during 
the draft audit stage. 
 
Reporting of progress to the Audit & Governance Committee to implement internal audit actions is 
the responsibility of the Finance Director / S151. 

 
Compliance with Policies and Strategies 
This report complies with the Audit Committee terms of reference and the Audit Procedures 
Manual.  
 
Ward Member and Leader Member Views 
Councillor Philip Hackett, Chair of Audit & Governance, commented “The Internal Audits Reports 
contribute to the Council’s robust governance arrangements.”    

 
4. CONCLUSIONS 

The following is a summary of the four assurance levels currently used, along with the audits that 
have been awarded each level: 
 

Opinion Audit 

Substantial Assurance 
‘A sound system of Governance’ 

Main Accounting System 
Food Safety 

Reasonable Assurance  
‘Some scope for improvement’ 

Building Control 
Strategic Planning 

Limited Assurance 
‘Improvement is required’ 

Estate Management 

No Assurance 
‘Immediate action required’ 

NA 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 11



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

3 
 

 
 

5. RECOMMENDATIONS 

Committee are asked to: 
 

Note the reports issued in this reporting period and raise any queries, suggestions or proposals 
relating to the internal audits in this report. 

 
 
SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

 
 Consultations:  

 
Steve Hearse, Chief Executive Officer 
Staci Dorey, Head of Legal and Governance and Monitoring 
Officer 
Councillor Philip Hackett, Audit and Governance Committee Chair 
 

 Contact Officer:  
 

David Heyes, Finance Manager & S151 Officer 
Robert Hutchins – Head of Devon Audit Partnership 
Paul Middlemass – DAP Audit Manager 

  
Background Papers: 

 
Audit files 

 
 
 
 
  

Page 12



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

4 
 

Appendix A 

 
Overview of Reports Issued not previously reported to Committee 

 

Main Accounting System 
 
Overall Assurance Level – Substantial  
 
No of recommendations – None 
 
No of recommendations agreed – NA 
 
Summary    

The Main Accounting System environment is well controlled, as we reported in our 2020-21 audit, with 
a consistent approach, management and personnel, resulting in a Substantial Assurance Opinion. 
Rules and procedures are up to date and key office are aware of regulatory requirements. Timely bank 
reconciliations take place and are signed off by the S151 officer. We identify one Opportunity for the 
council to consider related to review of alternatives to the use of Microsoft Explorer to view files, as it 
will not be supported from June 2022. 

 

Food Safety 
 
Overall Assurance Level – Substantial  
 
No of recommendations – 1 Medium 
 
No of recommendations agreed – 1 Medium 
 
Summary    

The Food and Safety Team demonstrates good compliance with statutory requirements including the 
COVID-19 Local Authority Recovery Plan set by the Food Standards Agency (FSA). The Covid-19 
shutdown resulted in cessation of the inspection regime and created a big backlog of inspections to 
cover now food providers have re-opened. The experienced team has adapted to the rapidly changing 
environment of the pandemic by focussing resources to higher risk businesses (new applicants) and 
the priority business areas highlighted by the FSA in their evolving recovery plan.  Reactive work has 
been managed simultaneously, with the aid of an outside contractor undertaking new application 
inspections.  Progress on Phase 2 of the FSA’s Recovery Plan (to deal with the backlog) is on target 
for meeting the 30 June deadline for all Category A for standards and B for hygiene to have received 
an onsite intervention. Work has already commenced on planning for the next milestone date of 30 
September 2022, for Category C for hygiene and ‘less than broadly compliant’ to have received an 
onsite intervention. 

Some process and procedure documents are overdue for review or are currently being reviewed 
however most are current, clearly written and of a high standard.  Complaints and appeals are logged, 
investigated, and responded to promptly, with protracted or outstanding cases discussed at regular 
team meetings. 

Since the UK left the EU, export health certificates are now a legal requirement to accompany food 
exports, which is a new, chargeable service. The process is time-consuming and the risk of incorrect 
documentation completion is significant to the exporting business since even very minor errors will 
hold up perishable goods at the border.  Use of this service is presently low, and the process is 
potentially going to change, however if demand grows, the process and/or required resources will 
require an overhaul. 

 

Page 13



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

5 
 

 

Building Control 
 
Overall Assurance Level – Reasonable  
 
No of recommendations – 1 Medium 
 
No of recommendations agreed – 1 Medium 
 
Summary    

We consider the control framework over the processing of Building Control applications to be effective. 
Overall, there is good management of recording and processing applications, and acceptance and 
inspections are timely. The Team is pro-active in promoting the service, customer satisfaction appears 
to be high, and no complaints have been recorded in recent years.  The high number of applications 
(94%) received electronically for 2021/22 (quarters 1-3) helps efficient processing of applications.  We 
make one medium priority recommendation and some ‘opportunities.  

The ‘medium’ priority recommendation refers to the financial position of the service as review of 
finances shows that for 2020/21 and 2021/22 (as at the time of the audit), the service is not recovering 
its costs resulting in an annual loss of about £80k to 90k.  

We were told that the Covid-19 emergency has impacted services over the last couple of year, with an 
initial upturn in applications received and then a reduction in inspections due to delays during the build 
caused by difficulties in sourcing materials.  That said, Finance has advised that the full-service 
including recharges, runs at a loss every year due to the central support costs.   

The service is subject to competition from private building contractors, albeit we note the high market 
share the council holds. Competitor’s pricing structures are not available, but we found that Torridge 
fees are comparable with other Local Authorities.  A review of another Local Authority found that they 
also did not cover their costs for the last financial year.  Government guidance is very clear that the 
service should not be making a profit and should seek only to cover costs. Being able to adhere to the 
guidance could set a challenge in being able to set prices to cover cost without making a significant 
profit or loss.  Building Control carried out a review and increased prices in 2019; it appears it is a 
good time to review these prices. While an increase in prices may result in a reduction in business, we 
note the high market share held so a price rise may make business sense.   

The Team has a performance indicator to monitor the % of market share they hold.  For 2021/22 the 
average figure is 85% as of 31 December 2021.  The Team also contacts customers to gain feedback 
on the service they provide.  The average customer satisfaction score over a 5-month period (April 
2021- August 2021) was 9.58 (out of 10).  There haven’t been any customer complaints during the 
period of September 2020 to August 2021.  The Team appear to be pro-active in promoting their 
service through various avenues.  These positive results suggest that the Team works hard to 
maintain high standards and develop the service. 
 

Strategic Planning 
 
Overall Assurance Level – Reasonable  
 
No of recommendations – 1 Medium, 1 Low 
 
No of recommendations agreed – 1 Medium, 1 Low 
 
Summary    

The Council has a very systematic approach to strategic planning that we consider good practice, with 
significant focus on members participation in discussing and agreeing the themes, actions and key 

Page 14



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

6 
 

performance indicators to show progress to complete the Strategic Plan. Progress reporting to 
members is undertaken as part of the Quarterly Business Reports that were refined in 2021 with 
member input to concentrate on key deliverables. An overall Delivery Plan (on one page) is used to 
provide a good representation to members on progress to deliver the themes and underlying actions, 
supported by the more detailed QBR reports.  

Annual service area plans also identify the themes and actions from the Strategic Plan, and the work 
needed to progress them. This is supplemented by Service specific Place Mats that highlight the work 
and priorities to be undertaken and how they relate to the Strategic Plan. Overall progress to deliver 
the Strategic Plan is also clearly reported to the public in an Annual Report which supports 
transparency.   

While the Strategic Plan themes and actions were reviewed a year ago, there may now be a 
disconnect with the resources available to support them. The Medium-Term Business Plan notes that 
a balanced budget can only be achieved with use of council reserves, and some cuts will be needed 
as a result. This may impact on taking forward some Strategic Plan priorities. A working group of the 
Full Council is considering how council priorities may need to be changed to reflect funding decisions 
needed; given this work is underway we have not made a recommendation.  

There would be benefit in building a better understanding and monitoring of internal and member 
review of its key internal Strategies (i.e., Digital by Default Strategy), and external partner Strategies 
(i.e., Homelessness Strategy 2020-25) and other Partnership agreements impacting on delivery of the 
Strategic Plan and other priorities. We recommended delivery of key strategies and Partnership 
agreement be contained in Service Delivery Plans for reviewed by Senior Management Team. 
 

Estate Management 
 
Overall Assurance Level – Limited Assurance 
 
No of recommendations – (1 High, 6 Medium)  
 
No of recommendations agreed - 7 
 
Summary 

Many of the recommendations from our previous audit report of January 2020 have yet to be 
implemented and a Limited Assurance remains applicable, as we do not have appropriate assurance 
that council assets are being well managed and maintained. During our fieldwork we noted the plans 
of the new Estate Manager to progress these recommendations and address the areas of weakness 
within a reasonable timeframe. If that work is taken forward, we would expect to raise this Limited 
Assurance opinion in 2022/23. We acknowledge that some recommendations have been implemented 
since the last audit (supported by the new Estate Manager, and Climate Change Officer) such as the 
identification and monitoring of Green House Gas emissions, and the creation of the Estate Project 
Management team.  

 

The significant work required is: 

 Creation of an Asset Management Plan to support maintenance of assets and move it from a 
reactive to a proactive approach to estate work.       

 Creation of a strategy to better align estate management with strategic priorities.  

 A single system to hold details of all assets and support management of reactive and proactive 
maintenance work.  

 A range of performance measures to monitor and manage estate management.  

 Listing and monitoring of all the statutory Health and Safety inspections to ensure they are 
completed on time.  

  

Page 15



 
  

Agenda Item   

REPORT OF DAP Audit Manager 

To: Audit & Governance Committee March 2022 

Subject: Draft DAP internal audit plan for Torridge District Council 2022-23 

Date: 16 March 2022   

 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT:  To provide the draft internal audit plan to the Audit and Governance 

Committee for review and agreement.  
 
 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 

The chief audit executive is responsible for developing a risk-based plan which considers the 
organisation’s risk management framework, including using risk appetite levels set by management 
for the different activities or parts of the organisation. 

The audit plan represents the proposed internal audit activity for the year and an outline scope of 
coverage. At the start of each audit the scope is discussed and agreed with management with the 
view to providing management, the Finance Manager (Section 151 officer), and members with 
assurance on the control framework to manage the risks identified. The plan will remain flexible, and 
any changes will be agreed formally with management and reported to Audit Committee. 

 
2. DEVELOPMENT OF THE PLAN 

This year’s audit plan at Appendix A has been developed through discussion with the Head of 
Finance and consideration of the Council’s risk register and plan. It is also informed by previous 
audit findings, and our awareness of current themes in Devon and elsewhere, such as Climate 
Change, and post C-19 recovery. Within the plan, we aim to provide good coverage of Council 
Corporate risks, and current public sector risks. We have maintained the four-year plan to help 
identify future resource requirements and ensure good coverage of areas over the period, but our 
focus is to agree the audit days for 2022/23. There has been a slight reduction compared to the 
2021-22 plan, to 166 audit days.  
 
3. SUMMARY OF THE AUDIT PLAN 

The audit plan is divided into the following areas: 
 

 Core audits (79 days) largely on what are termed “key financial systems” that process most 
of the Council’s income and expenditure and which have a significant impact on the reliability 
and accuracy of the annual accounts. These include Payroll, Creditors, Main Accounting 
System, Council Tax, Housing Benefit. This work will provide assurance that core controls 
continue to be effective despite the changing environment. 

 

 Assurance within the different Strategic Goal areas (77 days) of the Corporate Plan.  
 

 Risk specific reviews (7 days) focused on risk management and counter fraud activity.  
  
In accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, the plan is flexible, to reflect and 
respond to the changing risks and priorities of the Authority. As a result, it will be regularly reviewed 
and updated to ensure it remains valid and appropriate. As a minimum, the plan will be reviewed in 
six months’ time to ensure it continues to reflect the key risks and priorities.  
 
Detailed terms of reference will be drawn up and agreed with management prior to the start of each 
assignment – in this way we ensure that key risks to the operation or function are considered during 
our review. 

Page 16

Agenda Item 7



 
  

 

A chart showing allocation of audit days is below: 
 

 
 
4. IMPLICATIONS 

Legal Implications 
None 
 

Financial Implications 
None 
 

Human Resources Implications 
None 
 

Sustainability Implications 
None 
 

Equality/Diversity 
None 
 

Risk Management 
Our audits are focused on risk and will provide assurance on the significant risk areas. 
 

Compliance with Policies and Strategies 
None 
 

Ward Member and Lead Member Views 
Not consulted in advance of meeting. 

 
5. CONCLUSION 

We consider the audit plan provides good coverage over core council areas to support a 
well-rounded annual assurance opinion, but audit committee input would be welcome.   
 

6. RECOMMENDATION 

The Committee is asked to review the audit proposal for 2022-23 at Appendix A and 
consider whether any amendments are required.  

Page 17



 
  

Appendix A 

 
Torridge District Council Draft Internal Audit Plan 

 

Audit Universe 
Date of 

last 
audit 

Other 
Assurance 
Sources 

R
is

k
 S

c
o
re

 

2022/23 
nominal 

days 

2023/24 
nominal 

days 

2024/25 
nominal 

days 

2025/26 
nominal 

days 
Comments / Corporate Risk areas 

Core Systems                 

Council Tax 2019/20   H 10 10 10 10 
Not undertaken in Q4 of 21/22 at client 

request.  

Creditors 2021/22   H 7   7     

Debtors 2021/22   H   5       

Housing Benefit and Council Tax 
Support 

2021/22 
External audit 

of subsidy 

claim 
H 15 15 15 15   

ICT / Cyber Security 2021/22   H 15 15 15 15 
Corporate Risk: Cyber Security / Measures 
to prevent the vulnerability of a cyber 
related incident against our IT systems.  

Income (Cash, E-payments, 

Parkmobile and BACS) 
202021   H 7   7     

Main Accounting 2021/22 
External audit 

of accts H 5 5 5 5 
Corporate Risk: A Balanced Budget and 

Medium-Term Financial Strategy 

NNDR 2020/21   H 10 10 10 10   

Payroll 2021/22   H 5 10 5 10   

VAT 2020/21 
HMRC 

Inspection M     5     

Treasury Management 2019/20   M 5   5     

Sub Total       79 70 84 65   

Risk Focused Audits                 

Risk Management  2021/22   H 5 5 5 5   

Annual Fraud and Corruption 

Assessment 
2021/22     2 2 2 2   

Sub Total       7 7 7 7   

P
age 18



 
  

 
Strategic Goal: Develop a Prosperous & Sustainable Economy 

  
        

Economic Regeneration 2021/22   H       10   

Harbour/Pilotage / Port Marine 

Safety 
2021/22   M     5     

North Devon + 2010/11   M   5       

Rental Venues 2019/20   L  6 
 

      

Sub Total       6 5 5 10   

 
Strategic Goal: Protect and Enhance the Quality Environment 
  

Building Control Services 2021/22   L     10     

Burton & Bideford Arrangements 2012/13   M 
 

  3      

Car Parks   2021/22   M     10     

Conservation (include legal 
requirements in DM in future) 

2012/13   L 5         

Development Management  2021/22   H     10   
Corporate Risk: Reputational and potential 
financial risk arising from the Levelling Up 

Submission - Isaac Yard.  

Estates Management 2021/22   M 5   5   Follow up to Limited Assurance 21/22 audit 

Climate Change NA     5   
 

10  

Corporate Risk: Climate Change / 

Measures and plans to meet our net zero 
carbon targets 

Environmental Protection 2020/21   M   7       

Grounds Maintenance contract 2010/11   L   5       

Northam Burrows 2019/20   L 5     5   

Planning Enforcement 2019/20     5     5   

Planning policy / LDF  2010/11   H 
 

10        

Section 106  2019/20   M   5       

Tree Preservation Orders 2019/20   H 5   5     

Sub Total       30 27 43 20   

P
age 19



 
  

                  

Strategic Goal: Support Stronger, Safer, Healthier Communities  

  

CCTV / Community Safety 2015/16   L 5         

Cemeteries (administration) 2021/22   L       5   

Corporate Health & Safety 2021/22   M     5   

Corporate Risk: Corporate Manslaughter / 
Having the necessary systems and controls 
to prevent a fatality and or serious accident 

from occurring.  

Councillor Grants 2020/21   M     4     

Crematorium  2019/20   L         Delivered as part of North Devon audit plan 

Democracy / Electoral Registration 2011/12 
Electoral 

Commission 
Returns 

L 7         

DFG Grant Audit Annual   L 1 2 1 2   

Hardship Grants / Test and Trace 2021/22             
Corporate Risk: Admin of Central 
Government Grants 

C19 Business Grants  2021/22             
Corporate Risk: Admin of Central 
Government Grants 

Emergency Planning 2021/22   L       5 

Corporate Risk: Civil Emergency Response 
/ Ability for the Council to respond to an 

event prescribed under the Civil 
Contingencies Act 2004 

Business Continuity       5       

Corporate Risk: Business Continuity/ 
Ensuring continuance and resumption of 

operations during an unforeseen event or 
emergency 

Food safety 2021/22 
Food Standards 

Agency  M     5     

Housing Options 2019/20   M   10       

Housing Renewal  2019/20   M   10       

Licensing (inc Taxi Licences and 
local licences) 

2021/22   M     7     

P
age 20



 
  

Leisure / Leisure contract (1610) 2011/12   H         

Corporate Risk: Provision of Leisure in a 

post Covid-19 environment - anticipation of 
additional support to maintain leisure 
services at current levels. NB. A 

programme of audits for the new leisure 
centre company has been created.  

Refuse / Cleansing / Recycling 
management 

2018/19   H   7       

Safeguarding  2020/21   M     5   

Corporate Risk: Safeguarding Children and 

Vulnerable Adults/ Ability to meet council’s 
statutory responsibilities.  

Community Safety Partnership 2017/18   M   5       

Sub Total       18 34 27 12   

 

Strategic Goal: An Effective and Customer Focused Council 
  

        

Project Delivery New   M 7         

Governance (Comms, complaints, business 
planning, governance) 2017/18   L 5       

Corporate Risk: Reputation of the Council-
Managing the risk of actions, activities and 
decisions that could affect the reputation of 

the Council.   

Devolution New   L     5     

Ethics & Values of the Authority 2020/21   H     5     

Freedom of Information 2011/12   L   5       

Information Governance (including 
Data Protection) 

2019/20   M 7     7 Corporate Risk: Data Security 

Insurance 2016/17   L 4         

Land Charges 2020/21   L     7     

Member Allowances New   H           

Member Development New   L   4       

Procurement  2020/21   M   5       

Register of officer's interest 2016/17   L 
 

       Included within Dem Services audit 

Social Media and Communications New   H   5       

P
age 21



 
  

Strategic Planning 2021/22   H           

Telephones / Mobile Phones  New   M     5     

Recruitment, Selection and Retention 2021/22   L       5 
Corporate Risk: A skilled and sufficiently 
resourced workforce 

Travel & Subsistence 2016/17   L   
 

     Included in Payroll audit 

Equality & Diversity 2020/21   L       5   

        23 19 22 17   

Total Audit Time       163 162 188 131   

Audit Management (Reports for Audit 

Committee, liaison, other 
miscellaneous activities) 

Annual   H 3 3 3 3   

  Total Days 166 165 191 134  

 

P
age 22



Internal Audit 
 
Annual Internal Audit Report 
2021/22 
 
Torridge District Council 
Audit and Governance 
Committee 
 
April 2022 

 
 
 

P
age 23

A
genda Item

 8



Contents 

 

 

INTRODUCTION __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 3 

BASIS FOR OPINION ______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 5 

INTERNAL AUDIT COVERAGE AND RESULTS _______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 6 

FRAUD PREVENTION AND DETECTION _____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 8 

SERVICE DELIVERY - DEVON AUDIT PARTNERSHIP - PROFESSIONALISM AND QUALITY________________________________________________________________ 9 

CONFORMANCE WITH PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS (PSIAS) _______________________________________________________________________ 9 

CUSTOMER SERVICE EXCELLENCE________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 9 

AUDIT AUTHORITY ______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 10 

THE CONSEQUENCES OF CHANGE AND RISK _____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 11 

APPENDIX 1 - ANNUAL GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK ASSURANCE___________________________________________________________________________________ 12 

APPENDIX 2 - PERFORMANCE INDICATORS _______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 13 

APPENDIX 3 - COMPARISON OF AUDIT OPINIONS __________________________________________________________________________________________________ 14 

 _________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ ERROR! BOOKMARK NOT DEFINED. 

APPENDIX 4 - CUSTOMER FEEDBACK RESULTS 2021/22 ____________________________________________________________________________________________ 15 

 

 
 
 
  
 

Devon Audit Partnership Confidentiality and Disclosure Clause 

The Devon Audit Partnership has been formed under a joint committee arrangement comprising of 
Torridge, Plymouth, Torbay, Mid Devon, North Devon, South Hams, West Devon & Devon County 

councils.  We aim to be recognised as a high-quality internal audit service in the public sector.  We 
work with our partners by providing a professional internal audit service that will assist them in meeting 
their challenges, managing their risks and achieving their goals.  In carrying out our work we are 

required to comply with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards along with other best practice & 
professional standards.The Partnership is committed to providing high quality, professional customer 
services to all; if you have any comments or suggestions on our service, processes or standards, the 

Head of Partnership would be pleased to receive them at robert.hutchins@devonaudit.gov.uk . 

This report is protectively marked in accordance with the National 
Protective Marking Scheme. It is accepted that issues raised may well 

need to be discussed with other officers within the Council, the report 
itself should only be copied/circulated/disclosed to anyone outside of 
the organisation in line with the organisation’s disclosure policies.  

This report is prepared for the organisation’s use.  We can take no 
responsibility to any third party for any reliance they might place upon it.  

P
age 24

mailto:robert.hutchins@devonaudit.gov.uk


 

3 

 

Introduction 
The Audit and Governance Committee, under its Terms of Reference contained in Torridge District Council’s Constitution is required to consider Internal 
Audit’s annual report and opinion; a summary of internal audit activity (actual and proposed) and the level of assurance it can give over the Council’s 
corporate governance arrangements. 

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require that all Authorities carry out an annual review of the effectiveness of their internal audit system and 
incorporate the results of that review into their Annual Governance Statement (AGS), published with the annual Statement of Accounts. The Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards also requires the Head of Internal Audit to provide an annual report providing an opinion that can be used by the organisation to 
inform its governance statement.  

The following report and appendices set out the background to audit service provision; summarises our work undertaken in 2021/22 and provides an opinion 
on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s internal control environment. 

Context for 2021/22.  We have continued to deliver our audit plan despite the disruptions caused to work arrangements due to the Covid-19 pandemic. This 

includes officer time rightly focused on front line service delivery and supporting the wider community in dealing with Covid-19. We have still been able to 
complete most of our audits to support provision of an annual audit opinion.  The audit work that has been completed in 2021/22 has mainly been achieved via 
remote working, and we are most appreciative of the support provided by Torridge officers in enabling us to effectively and efficiently complete this work. 
 
Expectations of the Audit and Governance Committee from this annual report 

Audit & Governance Committee members are requested to consider: 

 the assurance statement within this report. 

 the basis of our opinion and the completion of audit work against the plan. 

 the scope and ability of audit to complete the audit work. 

 audit coverage and findings provided. 

 the overall performance and customer satisfaction on audit delivery. 

In review of the above the Audit and Governance Committee are required to consider the assurance provided alongside that of Senior Management, 
Corporate Risk Management and external assurance including that of the External Auditor as part of the Governance Framework (see appendix 1) and satisfy 
themselves from this assurance for signing the Annual Governance Statement.   

Robert Hutchins    Head of Devon Audit Partnership 

  

P
age 25



 

4 

 

Overall, based on work performed during 2021/22 and our experience 
from previous years audit, Internal Audit is able to provide 
“Reasonable assurance” (see below) on the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control framework. 

However, the Covid19 crisis has continued to place considerable pressures 
on all local authorities during the year, and this is true of Torridge. Some 
actions taken by the Council such as issue of emergency grants have had 
to be made quickly. Therefore, system and control design of such decisions 
may not have been subject to the normal level of control. In our work we 
have sought to confirm that key controls continue to operate effectively. 

ASSURANCE STATEMENT 
 

       This statement of opinion is underpinned by: 

This assurance statement will support Members in their consideration for signing the 
Annual Governance Statement see appendix 1. 
 

Internal Audit assesses whether key, and other, controls are operating 
satisfactorily. An opinion on the adequacy of controls is provided to management 
as part of each audit report.   

Senior Management have been provided with details of our opinion on each 
audit review to assist them with compilation of annual governance assurance 
statements.  If significant weaknesses have been identified, these have been 
considered by the Authority in preparing its Annual Governance Statement which 
will be accompanying its published Statement of Accounts for 2021/22.   
 

Substantial Assurance. A sound system of governance, risk management and control exists, w ith 

internal controls operating effectively and being consistently applied to support the achievement of 
objectives in the area audited. 

Reasonable Assurance. There is a generally sound system of 

governance, risk management and control in place. Some issues, non-
compliance or scope for improvement were identified which may put at 
risk the achievement of objectives in the area audited. 

Limited Assurance. Signif icant gaps, weaknesses or non-compliance were identif ied. Improvement 
is required to the system of governance, risk management and control to effectively manage risks 
to the achievement of objectives in the area audited. 

No Assurance. Immediate action is required to address fundamental gaps, w eaknesses or non-

compliance identif ied. The system of governance, risk management and control are inadequate to 
effectively manage risks to the achievement of objectives in the area audited. 

 

Internal Control Framework   

The control environment comprises the Council’s policies, procedures 
and operational systems and processes in place to: 

 Establish and monitor the achievement of the Council’s 
objectives. 

 Facilitate policy and decision making. 
 Ensure the economical, effective and efficient use of resources. 

 Ensure compliance with established policies, procedures, laws 
and regulations. 

 Safeguard the Council’s assets and interests from losses of all 
kinds, including those arising from fraud, irregularity or 
corruption.  

During 2021/22, core financial and administrative systems were 
reviewed by Internal Audit through specific reviews. We have concluded 
that the Council’s overall internal control framework operated effectively 
during 2021/22.  

Risk Management 

The Risk Management (RM) 
Strategy defines the process 

by which risks are identified, 
assessed, managed and 
controlled.  

The Council uses this to 
recognise and deal with the 
possibility of failing to achieve 

its corporate and service 
objectives. It identifies &, 
evaluates the impact and 

likelihood of event and 
identified action to control the 
risks effectively. 

Governance 
Arrangements 
 

Governance 
arrangements were 
reviewed in many of 

our audits. Our audit of 
Strategic Planning 
specifically looked at 

delivery of the councils 
Strategic Plan and 
other strategies and 

plans.  

Economy Efficiency 
& Effectiveness 
 

In our audits we have 
considered how the 
council can focus 

more clearly on costs 
and benefits. These 
were specific features 

of our audits of the 
Harbour, Estate 
Management, and 

Building Control. 
Where possible we 
have compared and 

contrasted 
arrangements against 
other councils.   

P
age 26



 

5 

 

 
Basis for Opinion 
 
The Chief Internal Auditor is required to provide the Council with an 
assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of its accounting records and 
its system of internal control. In giving our opinion, this assurance can 
never be absolute. The assurance level provided is based on our 
assessment of the control environment at the point of review, supported by 
a limited amount of sample testing. 
 
This report: - 

 compares the work carried out with the work that was planned through 
risk assessment.  

 presents a summary of the audit work undertaken. 

 includes an opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Authority’s 
internal control environment.  

 summarises the performance of the Internal Audit function against its 
performance measures and other criteria.  

CIPFA, the body that advises on professional internal audit standards, 
recognises that the impact of Covid-19 and the capacity of the organisation to 
respond will have varied as a result of a number of factors (please see link).  
CIPFA recognises that, alongside direct internal audit work, the HIA (Head of 
Internal Audit) can also place reliance on other assurance providers. Factors that 
we are required to consider when providing our opinion include: 

• the changing risks and impacts on the organisation itself 

• whether key governance, risk management and internal control 
arrangements have deteriorated or been maintained 

• changes to the resource base of internal audit  

• demands on internal audit for any advisory or non-audit support 

• operational disruptions that impact on the access of internal auditors to 
key staff, information or systems resulting in greater inefficiency and 
reduced outputs. 

audits completed during 2021/22 and 
previous years, 

any follow up action taken in respect of audits 
from previous periods; 

any significant recommendations not 
accepted by management and the 

consequent risks; 

the quality of internal audit’s performance; 

the proportion of the Council’s audit need that 
has been covered to date; 

the extent to which resource constraints may 
limit this ability to meet the full audit needs of 

the Council; 

any limitations that may have been placed on 
the scope of internal audit. 

In assessing the level of assurance to be given the following have 
been considered: 
 
 

P
age 27

https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/standards/guidance-for-head-of-internal-audit-annual-opinions-202021


 

6 

 

 

Internal audit coverage and results 
 

In our opinion and based upon our audit work completed during the 2021/22 financial year and in previous years, we consider that adequate controls are in 
place to control operations at the council and provide “Reasonable Assurance” on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control 

framework. This reflects the three Substantial Assurance and seven Reasonable Assurance reports issued, but we also note the four Limited audit reports.  

Where weaknesses or areas for improvement have been identified management have largely agreed these findings and have either agreed the 
recommendations or accepted the associated risks.  Where management actions have been agreed and as appropriate, we shall undertake follow up work to 
ensure that the identified risks have been mitigated.  

We provide an assurance opinion for each piece of work. This assurance opinion is graded as follows (please also refer to appendix 3). (please see key on 
following page). 

 

Opinion Audit  

Substantial Assurance Main Accounting  

Food Safety 

Payroll 

Reasonable Assurance Building Control 

Corporate Health and Safety 

Debtors 

Emergency Planning 

Parking Services  

Recruitment Selection and Retention  

Strategic Planning 

Limited Assurance Estate Management 

IT Security - Home Working 

Cemeteries 

Harbour Services 

No Assurance None 

 

P
age 28



 

7 

 

 

 

 

Definitions of Audit Assurance Opinion Levels 
 

 
 

Assurance Definition 

Substantial Assurance 
A sound system of governance, risk management and control exists, with internal controls operating effectively and being cons istently applied 

to support the achievement of objectives in the area audited. 

Reasonable 

Assurance 
There is a generally sound system of governance, risk management and control in place. Some issues, non-compliance or scope for 

improvement were identified which may put at risk the achievement of objectives in the area audited. 

Limited Assurance 
Significant gaps, weaknesses or non-compliance were identified. Improvement is required to the system of governance, risk management and 

control to effectively manage risks to the achievement of objectives in the area audited. 

No Assurance 
Immediate action is required to address fundamental gaps, weaknesses or non-compliance identified. The system of governance, risk 

management and control are inadequate to effectively manage risks to the achievement of objectives in the area audited. 
 

Work in progress as at May 2022 – There are no significant audits yet to be completed at the time of this report. We agreed to defer audits of Council Tax, 
and Housing Benefits to Quarter 2 of 2022-23 to help the council manage various other government initiatives such as those support the public with energy 
costs.   

 

Other Sources of assurance 
 

During the year other sources of assurance will be gained. During 2021/22 these sources have included the following: - 
 
1. Grant Thornton (production of annual accounts letter etc.) 
2. Local Government Ombudsman (annual letter) 
3. ICT Security (external penetration testing) 
4. Internal review of the effectiveness of the Audit and Governance Committee 
 

 

  

P
age 29



 

8 

 

 

Fraud Prevention and Detection  
 

Fraud Prevention and Detection and the National Fraud Initiative  

Counter-fraud arrangements are a high priority for the Council and assist in the protection of public funds and accountability, regular reminders about anti-
fraud and whistleblowing arrangements are provided to staff in the regular staff newsletter.  The Audit Commission runs a national data matching exercise 
(National Fraud Initiative - NFI) every two years.  In reviewing and investigating the most recent data matching cases, Council staff have been able to 
generate estimated savings in the region of £35,000.  

 
Every case of alleged fraud or irregularity is thoroughly investigated, and action will be taken to address any concerns identified. The council will issue 
sanctions against those who commit fraud, although it should be noted that since the transfer of benefit payments to DWP, the need for Torridge to issue 
cautions has reduced. In the 2021/22 financial year Torridge did not issue any administrative penalties. 
 
The Council also assist with request for data from the police, other local authorities and public sectors bodies who asked for information to assist in their own 
prevention and detection of fraud. Such requests relate to the release of data concerning the general public and are referred to as “section 29” requests.  
 
 
Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption - Self Assessment  

 
During 2015 CIPFA’s Counter Fraud Centre issued a code of practice on managing the risk of fraud and corruption. The guidance emphasised the need for 
public service organisations to take responsibility to embed effective standards for countering fraud and corruption in their organisation. This supports good 
governance and demonstrates effective financial stewardship and strong public management.  
 
Internal Audit undertook a self-assessment of the standards in place at Torridge Council against the code of practice. We reported to the January 2022 Audit 
and Governance committee that, by and large, effective and appropriate standards were in place.  
 
Internal Audit will continue to support counter fraud activity and helping to ensure standards and practices are embedded and remain effective at deterring and 
preventing fraud. 

 

  

P
age 30



 

9 

 

Service Delivery - Devon Audit Partnership - Professionalism and Quality 

The internal audit plan for 2021/22 has been delivered by the Devon Audit Partnership. The Partnership is expected to meet high standards of professionalism 
and quality, and in particular meet the requirements of the Public Sector Internal Audit standards. The following paragraphs detail how DAP supports this aim.    

Conformance with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) 

Conformance - Devon Audit Partnership conforms to the requirements of the PSIAS for its internal audit activity. The purpose, authority and responsibility of 

the internal audit activity is defined in our internal audit charter, consistent with the Definition of Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics and the Standards. Our 
internal audit charter was approved by senior management and the Audit Committee in March 2020. This is supported through DAP self-assessment of 
conformance with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards & Local Government Application note. 

Quality Assessment - the Head of Devon Audit Partnership maintains a quality assessment process which includes review by audit managers of all audit 

work. The quality assessment process and improvement is supported by a development programme.   

External Assessment - The PSIAS states that a quality assurance and improvement programme must be developed; the programme should be informed by 
both internal and external assessments. 
  
An external assessment must be conducted at least once every five years by a suitably qualified, independent assessor. For DAP this was recently conducted 
at the end of 2021 by the Head of Southwest London Audit Partnership, and the Chief Internal Auditor of Orbis (a partnership organisation covering Brighton 
and Hove, East Sussex, and Surrey County Council).   
  
The assessment result was that “Based on the work carried out, it is our overall opinion that DAP generally conforms* with the Standards and the Code of 
Ethics”. The report noted that “As a result of our work, a small number of areas where partial conformance was identified. These were minor observations, 
none of which were significant enough to affect the overall opinion”. DAP is actively addressing these improvement areas.  

* Generally Conforms – This is the top rating and means that the internal audit service has a charter, policies and processes that are judged to be in 

conformance to the Standards 

Improvement Programme – DAP maintains a rolling development plan of improvements to the service and customers. All recommendations of the external 

assessment of PSIAS and quality assurance were included in this development plan and have been completed. This will be further embedded with revision of 
our internal quality process through peer review. Our development plan is regularly updated, and a status report reported to the DAP Management Board.   

Customer Service Excellence 
 

DAP was successful in re-accreditation by G4S Assessment Services of the CSE standard during November 2021. 
 
During the year we have issued client survey forms for some of our reports, and the results of the surveys returned were very good / positive. The overall 
result is very pleasing, with near 97% being "satisfied” or better across our services (see Appendix 4).  It is very pleasing to report that our clients continue to 
rate the overall usefulness of the audit and the helpfulness of our auditors highly. 
 
 

P
age 31



 

10 

 

 

Audit Authority 
 

Service Provision 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Regulatory Role 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Professional Guidelines 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Audit StrategyThe  

The Internal Audit (IA) for Torridge Council has been delivered by the Devon Audit Partnership (DAP). This is a shared service arrangement 
between Torridge, Devon, Torbay, Plymouth, North Devon and Mid Devon councils constituted under section 20 of the Local Government Act 
2000. The Partnership undertakes an objective programme of audits to ensure that there are sound and adequate internal controls in place 
across the whole of the Council. It also ensures that the Council’s assets and interests are accounted for and safeguarded from error, fraud, 
waste, poor value for money or other losses. 

An annual plan, setting out expected audit priorities is risk assessed and agreed with senior management annually. 

There are two principal pieces of legislation that impact upon internal audit in local authorities: 

 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, which state at section 5(1) “A relevant authority must undertake an effective internal audit to 
evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control and governance processes, taking into account public sector internal auditing 
standards (PSIAS) or guidance”. 

 Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972, which requires every local authority to make arrangements for the proper administration of 

its financial affairs. 

 

Devon Audit Partnership works to professional guidelines which govern the scope, standards and conduct of Internal Audit as set down in the 
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. The Partnership was independently assessed in by Terry Barnett, Head of Assurance for Hertfordshire 
Shared Internal Audit Service and his colleague Chris Wood, Audit Manager; the Partnership was assessed as “conforming” to the standards. 

The Partnership has an internal Audit Manual that provides the method of work and works to and with the policies, procedures, rules and 
regulations established by the Authority. These include standing orders, schemes of delegation, financial regulations, conditions of service, anti-

fraud and corruption strategies, fraud prevention procedures and codes of conduct, amongst others 

Internal Audit Strategy sets out how the service will be provided, and the Internal Audit Charter describes the purpose, authority and principal 
responsibilities of the audit function. 

 

P
age 32



  

11 

 

The consequences of change and risk 
 

Times are changing; the expectation of the public for services provided by the 
public sector has never been greater; yet the money that is available for these 
services is limited. The impact of Brexit is not yet fully known, and the finally 
agreed exit agreement will bring with it both opportunities and challenges that 
will need to be addressed.  
 
There is a greater focus on information systems; the need to secure such 
systems from failure or outside influence has never been greater. The Data 
Protection Act 2018, also known as GDPR, has required organisations to 
review data management arrangements and make changes to manage the risk 
of data loss or breach. 
 
The Internal Audit function has a key role in helping management fully 
understand their risks and in designing effective and efficient controls that 
mitigate these risks to an acceptance level; a consistent application of a quality 
internal audit opinion assists the organisation to develop alternative and new 
delivery solutions that will deliver the service required. 
 
Our work during the year was been tailored to meet the changing requirements 
of the Authority throughout the year. All of the changes and risks within this 
graphic have been observed.  
 
 
 
 

  

Change Risk 

P
age 33



  

12 

 

Appendix 1 - Annual Governance Framework Assurance 
 
The conclusions of this report provide the internal audit 
assurance on the internal control framework necessary for the 
Committee to consider when reviewing the Annual Governance 
Statement. 

The Annual Governance Statement (AGS) provides assurance that  
o the Authority’s policies have been complied with in practice. 
o high quality services are delivered efficiently and effectively. 
o ethical standards are met. 
o laws and regulations are complied with. 
o processes are adhered to. 
o performance statements are accurate. 

The statement relates to the governance system as it is applied 
during the year for the accounts that it accompanies. It should: - 

 be prepared by senior management and signed by the Head of 
Paid Service and Leader of the Council. 

 highlight significant events or developments in the year. 

 acknowledge the responsibility on management to ensure good 
governance. 

 indicate the level of assurance that systems and processes can 
provide. 

 provide a narrative on the process that has been followed to 
ensure that the governance arrangements remain effective. This 
will include comment upon: - 
o The Authority. 
o Audit and Governance Committee. 
o Risk Management. 
o Internal Audit. 
o Other reviews / assurance 

 Provide confirmation that the Authority complies with 
CIPFA / SOLACE Framework Delivering Good 
Governance in Local Government. If not, a statement is 
required stating how other arrangements provide the same 
level of assurance. 

Corporate Risk Management 
framework and Reporting 

Internal Audit Assurance on 
the internal control 

framework 

Executive and Service 
Director Review and 

Assurance 

External Audit and Other 
Assurance Reports 

Annual 
Governance 
Framework 

The AGS needs to be presented to, and approved by, the Audit and Governance 
Committee, and then signed by the Chair. 

The Committee should satisfy themselves, from the assurances provided by Risk 
Management arrangements, senior management and Internal Audit that the 
statement meets statutory requirements and that the management team endorse 
the content. 

 

P
age 34



  

13 

 

Appendix 2 - Performance Indicators 
 
There are no national Performance Indicators in existence for Internal Audit, but the following Local Performance Indicators LPI’s may be of interest. 
 

Local Performance Indicator (LPI) 

 

2021/22 

 

2021/22 

 

2020/21 

 

2019/20 

 

2018/19 
 

 

2017/18 
 

 Target Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual 

Percentage of Key System Audits completed (1) 100% 60% 88% 100% 87.5% 100% 

Percentage of Other System Audits completed 70% 63% 54% 83% 91.6%  92% 

Actual Audit Days as percentage of planned (2) 90% 95% 67% 90.9% 93.2  100% 

Productive Audit Time 65% 62% 64% 65% 68.3% 71.5% 

Customer Satisfaction – percentage satisfied/very satisfied (3) 90% 98% 94% 90.9% 92.3% 91% 

Average number of days to produce draft internal audit reports  43 days 49 days 32 days 25 days 26 days 25 days 

Average number of days to produce final internal audit reports 70 days 82 days 47 days 65 days 43 days 48 days 

Out-turn within budget Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

 
   
(1)  At client request to help with demands from Covid-19 and other support, we deferred our audits of Council Tax and Housing Benefits. 
(2)  At 31 March 2022 we had delivered 173 out of 183 planned days. Additional days will also have been undertaken in April / May to complete the work 
which will increase this percentage. 
(3)  The figure of 98% shown represents customer feedback specific to Torridge, comprising 88% Very Satisfied, 10% Satisfied and 2% Adequate. Scores 
from the wider DAP partnership are shown at Appendix 4.  

  

P
age 35



  

14 

 

Appendix 3 - Comparison of Audit Opinions by Audit   

 

Comparison of Audit Opinions 2021/22 
        

          

Audit 
Overall 
Opinion 

Assessment for each risk area 

  Building Control Reasonable R S          
  Cemeteries Limited L  L  L  S      
 

Assurance Key 

Corporate Health and Safety Reasonable R R  R        
 

S = Substantial 

Debtors Reasonable S  L S  S      
 

R = Reasonable 

Emergency Planning Reasonable R            
 

L = Limited 

Estate Management Limited L  L  L  R  S    
 

N = No Assurance 

Food Safety Substantial S  S          
 

N/A = Not Applicable 

Harbour Services Limited L  L  R  R  L  L  
  IT Security - Home Working Limited L  R  R  L      
  LEP Grant Certified N/A           
  Main Accounting Substantial S  S  S  S      
  Parking Services Reasonable R  R  R  R      
  Payroll Substantial S  S  S  S  R    
  Recruitment, Selection & Retention Reasonable R  S  R  S      
  Strategic Planning Reasonable S  R  S  R      
  

 

 
 
 
 

 

P
age 36



  

15 

 

Appendix 4 - Customer Feedback Results 2021/22 
 

For each audit we issue a customer feedback form.  The results we receive help us shape our service; it helps to identify possible training needs for staff and helps us 

understand the areas of our process that are more challenging for the auditee.  The diagram below shows the client feedback we received within DAP over the year.  
 

 

P
age 37



Audit  
Agreed 

Actions 
Open Late Complete

Income Processing 2020/21 3 0 1 2

Housing Renewals 2020/21 10 0 2 8

Creditors 2020/21 2 1 0 1

NNDR 2020/21 8 0 1 7

Main Accounting System 2020/21 0 0 0 0

Safeguarding 2021/22 5 0 0 5

Housing Benenfits 2020/21 0 0 0 0

Equality & Diversity 2021/22 3 0 1 2

Risk Management 2021 9 1 1 7

Car Parking 2021/22 9 0 0 9

Cemeteries 2021/22 8 4 2 2

Debtors 2021/22 5 0 0 5

Payroll 2021/22 1 0 0 1

Health & Saftey 2021/22 5 2 0 3

Homeworking 2021/22 11 0 1 10

Harbours 2021/22 6 1 0 5

Emergency Planning 2021/22 4 4 0 0

Recruitment 2021/22 3 0 0 3

Estates Management 2021/22 7 5 1 1

Building Control 2021/22 1 1 0 0

Totals 100 19 10 71

19% 10% 71%

Audit Reports Published in 2021/22

Page 38

Agenda Item 9



Area Agreed Action Officer Target Date Status Comments for Late Actions
High / Medium / Low / 

Oppurtunity

Income Processing - 3DS2 Security 

Compliance

Capita will be updating the infrastructure, with input 

from TDC IT.
Steve Burgess Jun-21 Late

The Council is in the process of bringing in 3DS2 security as part of 

an upgrade. The Council is waiting on Capita to resolve the latest 

API so that it can swap the Granicus Forms system over to the new 

system.  The actual BACS deadline has been moved back into 2022

Medium

Team capacity has been increased with further increases 

being considered.

Part of the role for the new officer will be a review of 

policies and procedures to bring them up to date.

Housing Renewals - HMO's on IDOX

Additional team capacity has been put in place, with 

further capacity being considered. This increased 

level of staff resources should help to address the 

issues raised.

Janet Williams Oct-21 Late
Recently recruited apprentices will undertake this task in the new 

year
Medium

KB -This work was started Feb 2020 but then we went 

into lockdown and grants administration and had to 

cease this review. We hope to recommence once the 

C19 crisis & grants are over.

Equality & Diversity - Annual 

Reporting Requirement 

Annual review will be carried out and a report will be 

published to meet statutory requirements for 2020/21 

and thereafter

Staci Dorey Dec-21 Late The Council disagrees with Audit's assesment that a Medium

Risk Management - Independent 

member of A&G

We will continue in our independent efforts to recruit a 

suitable candidate. We are also working on this with 

DAP who are intending to identity a suitable pool of 

candidates for deployment within the region.

David Heyes Sep-21 Late DAP are still trying to recruit a suitably qualified individual Medium

Cemeteries - Backup arrangements 

of Cemetery Pro

This is an unacceptable risk and warrants further 

investigation to remedy as a priority. 
Tom Phillips Oct-21 Late

6 Jan 2022 - TP had proposed a backup solution with Cemetery Pro 

and sorted a plan by 10 Jan.  This was ran by TDC’s IT department 

before implementing and IT wanted to take controllership of the 

solution to the audit point.   IT have now been chased and if they 

do not come up with an alternative solution, then the database 

will be periodically download to excel  and stored on the Council's 

infrastructure

Medium

Cemeteries - Manual burial 

registers

prior to migration to Cemetery Pro, a scanned copy of 

the new pages in the manual entry would provide some 

additional cover.

Caddsdown 

Reception
Sep-21 Late

30% - No progress made since start of year unfortunately.  I hear 

non-sop about staffing / resource issues at Caddsdown and we are 

trying to hire an apprentice to alleviate the apparent pressures. All 

the current documents are scanned over as they come in, so it is 

just the historical paperwork that needs to be sorted. Additional 

resource has been secured from 21st March for a period of circa 3 

weeks, it is envisaged this will clear the backlog

Oppourtunity

Homeworking - Password Deny List
Review a password blacklist/deny list. A deny list 

can be created from published lists of common 

passords or tailored to the Council

Jon Walter Jan-22 Late Software purchased and tested, implementation due April 22 Medium

Estates Management - Database

Creation of a single system and database to hold details 

of all estate assets and the maintenance work 

undertaken or planned on them.

Tom Phillips Dec-22 Late

RG has beeb investigating although it has put down the priority list 

due to major contract workouts by end of March 22.  The SAM/ELF 

system partly covers this. There is some data in there but it is out 

of date. Signficant financial / resources  are required to meet this 

audit action.  The Estates team is currently trying to recruit an 

admin  post.

MEDIUM

Medium

Housing Renewals - Empty Homes 

Strategy not updated since 2015
Janet Williams Oct-21 Late

This isn't a strategic priority at this juncture and is not included 

within the Team's Business plan.  This may be incorporated wihin 

the development of the Council's corporate housing strategy

Medium

NNDR - Discretionary Rate Relief 

Policy
Karina Baird Mar-22 Late

The Business Team has been tasked with the delivery of further 

Business Support Grants (Omicron) and cosequently this task has 

been delayed.

P
age 39



P
age 40

A
genda Item

 10



Commercial in confidence

P
age 41



Commercial in confidence

•

•

P
age 42



Commercial in confidence

•

•

P
age 43



Commercial in confidence

P
age 44



Commercial in confidence

P
age 45



Commercial in confidence

P
age 46



Commercial in confidence

Independent auditor's report to the members of Torridge 
District Council
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion on financial statements
We have audited the financial statements of Torridge District Council (the ‘Authority’) 
for the year ended 31 March 2021, which comprise the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement, the Movement in Reserves Statement, the Balance Sheet, the 
Cash Flow Statement, the Collection Fund Statement and notes to the financial 
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial 
reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the 
CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom 
2020/21.

In our opinion, the financial statements:

 give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Authority as at 31 March 
2021 and of its expenditure and income for the year then ended; 

 have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC code of 
practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21; and 

 have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) 
(ISAs (UK)) and applicable law, as required by the Code of Audit Practice (2020) (“the 
Code of Audit Practice”) approved by the Comptroller and Auditor General. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s 
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements’ section of our report. We are 
independent of the Authority in accordance with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical 
Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter – effects of Covid-19 on property valuations

We draw attention to Note 7 of the financial statements, which describes the effects of 
the Covid-19 pandemic on the valuation of the Authority’s property as at 31 March 
2021. As disclosed in note 7 to the financial statements, specific trading related assets, 
such as leisure properties, continue to be faced with an unprecedented set of 
circumstances caused by Covid-19. The valuation of these assets is therefore reported 
as being subject to ‘material valuation uncertainty’, as set out in VPS 3 and VPGA 10 
of the RICS Valuation – Global Standards. For these valuations less certainty, and a 
higher degree of caution, should be attached to the valuation than would normally be 
the case. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We are responsible for concluding on the appropriateness of the Section 151 Officer’s 
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 
may cast significant doubt on the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern. 
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention 
in our report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify the auditor’s opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Authority to cease to continue as a going 
concern.

In our evaluation of the Section 151 Officer’s conclusions, and in accordance with the 
expectation set out within the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority 
accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21 that the Authority’s financial statements 
shall be prepared on a going concern basis, we considered the inherent risks 
associated with the continuation of services provided by the Authority. In doing so we 
had regard to the guidance provided in Practice Note 10 Audit of financial statements 
and regularity of public sector bodies in the United Kingdom (Revised 2020) on the 
application of ISA (UK) 570 Going Concern to public sector entities. We assessed the 
reasonableness of the basis of preparation used by the Authority and the Authority’s 
disclosures over the going concern period.

P
age 47



Commercial in confidence

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material 
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast 
significant doubt on the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern for a period of 
at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Section 151 Officer’s 
use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial 
statements is appropriate. 

The responsibilities of the Section 151 Officer with respect to going concern are 
described in the ‘Responsibilities of the Authority, the Section 151 Officer and Those
Charged with Governance for the financial statements’ section of this report.

Other information

The Section 151 Officer is responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Statement of Accounts, other than the 
financial statements, and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial 
statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise 
explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion 
thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material 
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine 
whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material 
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we 
conclude that there is a material misstatement of the other information, we are required 
to report that fact. 

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Other information we are required to report on by exception under the Code of 
Audit Practice

Under the Code of Audit Practice published by the National Audit Office in April 2020 on 
behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General (the Code of Audit Practice) we are required 
to consider whether the Annual Governance Statement does not comply with ‘delivering 
good governance in Local Government Framework 2016 Edition’ published by CIPFA and 
SOLACE or is misleading or inconsistent with the information of which we are aware from 
our audit. We are not required to consider whether the Annual Governance Statement 
addresses all risks and controls or that risks are satisfactorily addressed by internal 
controls. 

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters required by the Code of Audit Practice 

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit of the financial 
statements and our knowledge of the Authority, the other information published together 
with the financial statements in the Statement of Accounts for the financial year for which 
the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if:

 we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

 we make a written recommendation to the Authority under section 24 of the Local 
Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; 
or

 we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is 
contrary to law under Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in 
the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or; 

 we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and Accountability 
Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or 

 we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014, in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters.

P
age 48



Commercial in confidence

Responsibilities of the Authority, the Section 151 Officer and Those Charged 
with Governance for the financial statements

As explained in the Statement of Responsibilities, the Authority is required to make 
arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one 
of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this 
authority, that officer is the Section 151 Officer. The Section 151 Officer is responsible 
for the preparation of the Statement of Accounts, which includes the financial 
statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC code 
of practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21, for being 
satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Section 
151 Officer determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Section 151 Officer is responsible for 
assessing the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless there is an intention by government that the services provided by the 
Authority will no longer be provided.

The Audit and Governance Committee is Those Charged with Governance. Those 
Charged with Governance are responsible for overseeing the Authority’s financial 
reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is 
located on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at: 
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s 
report.

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting 
irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. 
We design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material 
misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. Owing to the inherent limitations 
of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that material misstatements in the financial 
statements may not be detected, even though the audit is properly planned and performed 
in accordance with the ISAs (UK). 

The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud 
is detailed below: 

 We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are 
applicable to the Authority and determined that the most significant ,which are 
directly relevant to specific assertions in the financial statements, are those related 
to the reporting frameworks (international accounting standards as interpreted and 
adapted by the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting in the 
United Kingdom 2020/21, the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, the 
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 and the Local Government Act 2003, and the 
Local Government Finance Act 1988 (as amended by the Local Government 
Finance Act 1992) and the Local Government Finance Act 2012.

 We enquired of senior officers and the Audit and Governance committee, 
concerning the Authority’s policies and procedures relating to:

 the identification, evaluation and compliance with laws and regulations;

 the detection and response to the risks of fraud; and

 the establishment of internal controls to mitigate risks related to fraud or 
non-compliance with laws and regulations.

We enquired of senior officers, internal audit and the Audit and Governance committee, 
whether they were aware of any instances of non-compliance with laws and 
regulations or whether they had any knowledge of actual, suspected or alleged fraud.

 We assessed the susceptibility of the Authority’s financial statements to material 
misstatement, including how fraud might occur, by evaluating officers’ incentives 
and opportunities for manipulation of the financial statements. This included the 
evaluation of the risk of management override of controls. We determined that the 
principal risks were in relation to journals, accounting estimates and critical 
judgements made by management.

P
age 49



Commercial in confidence

 Our audit procedures involved:

 evaluation of the design effectiveness of controls that the Section 151 
Officer has in place to prevent and detect fraud;

 journal entry testing, with a focus on management override of controls;

 challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in its 
significant accounting estimates in respect of land and buildings, 
investment property and defined benefit pensions liability valuations;

 assessing the extent of compliance with the relevant laws and 
regulations as part of our procedures on the related financial statement 
item.

 These audit procedures were designed to provide reasonable assurance that 
the financial statements were free from fraud or error. However, detecting 
irregularities that result from fraud is inherently more difficult than detecting 
those that result from error, as those irregularities that result from fraud may 
involve collusion, deliberate concealment, forgery or intentional 
misrepresentations.  Also, the further removed non-compliance with laws and 
regulations is from events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, 
the less likely we would become aware of it.

 Assessment of the appropriateness of the collective competence and 
capabilities of the engagement team included consideration of the engagement 
team's.

 understanding of, and practical experience with audit engagements of a 
similar nature and complexity through appropriate training and 
participation

 knowledge of the local government sector

 understanding of the legal and regulatory requirements specific to the 
Authority including:

 the provisions of the applicable legislation

 guidance issued by CIPFA, LASAAC and SOLACE

 the applicable statutory provisions.

 In assessing the potential risks of material misstatement, we obtained an 
understanding of:

 the Authority’s operations, including the nature of its income and 
expenditure and its services and of its objectives and strategies to 
understand the classes of transactions, account balances, expected 
financial statement disclosures and business risks that may result in 
risks of material misstatement.

 the Authority's control environment, including the policies and 
procedures implemented by the Authority to ensure compliance with the 
requirements of the financial reporting framework.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements – the 
Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency 
and effectiveness in its use of resources

Matter on which we are required to report by exception – the Authority’s 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources

Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, we 
have not been able to satisfy ourselves that the Authority has made proper 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources for the year ended 31 March 2021.  

Our work on the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources is not yet complete. The outcome of our work will 
be reported in our commentary on the Authority’s arrangements in our Auditor’s Annual 
Report. If we identify any significant weaknesses in these arrangements, these will be 
reported by exception in a further auditor’s report. We are satisfied that this work does 
not have a material effect on our opinion on the financial statements for the year ended 
31 March 2021.

Responsibilities of the Authority

The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for securing 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper 
stewardship and governance, and to review regularly the adequacy and effectiveness 
of these arrangements.

P
age 50



Commercial in confidence

Auditor’s responsibilities for the review of the Authority’s arrangements for 
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources

We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 
to be satisfied that the Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. We are not required to consider, 
nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the Authority's arrangements for 
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are operating 
effectively.

We undertake our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard 
to the guidance issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in April 2021. This 
guidance sets out the arrangements that fall within the scope of ‘proper arrangements’. 
When reporting on these arrangements, the Code of Audit Practice requires auditors to 
structure their commentary on arrangements under three specified reporting criteria:

 Financial sustainability: how the Authority plans and manages its resources to 
ensure it can continue to deliver its services; 

 Governance: how the Authority ensures that it makes informed decisions and 
properly manages its risks; and 

 Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness: how the Authority uses 
information about its costs and performance to improve the way it manages and 
delivers its services.

We document our understanding of the arrangements the Authority has in place for 
each of these three specified reporting criteria, gathering sufficient evidence to support 
our risk assessment and commentary in our Auditor’s Annual Report. In undertaking 
our work, we consider whether there is evidence to suggest that there are significant 
weaknesses in arrangements.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements – Delay in 
certification of completion of the audit

We cannot formally conclude the audit and issue an audit certificate for Torridge 
District Council for the year ended 31 March 2021 in accordance with the requirements 
of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice until we 
have completed our work on the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources and issued our Auditor’s Annual 
Report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the members of the Authority, as a body, in accordance 
with Part 5 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and as set out in paragraph 
43 of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by 
Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited. Our audit work has been undertaken so that 
we might state to the Authority’s members those matters we are required to state to 
them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by 
law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Authority and 
the Authority's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the 
opinions we have formed.

Julie Masci, Key Audit Partner

for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP, Local Auditor

Bristol

Date:

P
age 51



Commercial in confidence

P
age 52



Commercial in confidence





P
age 53



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

P
age 54



Commercial in confidence

•
•
•
•
•
•

P
age 55



Commercial in confidence

P
age 56



Commercial in confidence

P
age 57



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

P
age 58



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 59



P
age 60



P
age 61

A
genda Item

 11



Commercial in confidence

P
age 62



Commercial in confidence

−

−

−

−

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 63



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 64



Commercial in confidence

P
age 65



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 66



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 67



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 68



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 69



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 70



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 71

https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/0fa69c03-49ec-49ae-a8c9-cc7a2b65382a/ISA-(UK)-540_Revised-December-2018_final.pdf


Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

–

–

–

–

•

P
age 72



Commercial in confidence

P
age 73



Commercial in confidence

14

IT system Audit area Planned level IT audit assessment

Financial reporting • Streamlined ITGC design assessment

Payroll • Streamlined ITGC design assessment

Academy Housing Benefits, Business Rates • Streamlined ITGC design assessment

P
age 74



Commercial in confidence

P
age 75



Commercial in confidence

•

•

P
age 76



Commercial in confidence

17

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 77



Commercial in confidence

.

•

•

•

Ethical Standard (revised 

2019)

P
age 78

https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/601c8b09-2c0a-4a6c-8080-30f63e50b4a2/Revised-Ethical-Standard-2019-With-Covers.pdf


Commercial in confidence

P
age 79



Commercial in confidence

20

Function Benefits for you

Data extraction Providing us with your financial 

information is made easier

File sharing An easy-to-use, ISO 27001 certified, 

purpose-built file sharing tool

Project 

management

Effective management and oversight of 

requests and responsibilities

Data analytics Enhanced assurance from access to 

complete data populations

P
age 80



Commercial in confidence

21

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 81



Commercial in confidence

Not yet assessed

Not yet assessed

Not yet assessed

P
age 82



P
age 83



Informing the audit risk assessment 
for Torridge District Council 2021/22

Julie Masci
Engagement Lead
T +44 (0)29 2034 7506
E julie.masci@uk.gt.com

Andrew Davies
Engagement Manager
T +44 (0)117 305 7844
E andrew.davies@uk.gt.com

Rachel Lloyd
Engagement In-charge
T +44 (0)117 305 7755
E rachel.j.lloyd@uk.gt.com

P
age 84

A
genda Item

 12

tel:+441173057844


© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Torridge District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, which 

we believe need to be reported to you as part of our audit process.  It is not a comprehensive 

record of all the relevant matters, which may be subject to change, and in particular we cannot 

be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks which may affect your business or any 

weaknesses in your internal controls.  This report has been prepared solely for your benefit and 

should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written consent. We do not accept any 

responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the 

basis of the content of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any 

other purpose.

2

P
age 85



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Torridge District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Table of Contents

Section Page

Purpose 4

General Enquiries of Management 6

Fraud 9

Fraud Risk Assessment 10

Laws and Regulations 15

Impact of Laws and Regulations 16

Related Parties 18

Going Concern 20

Accounting Estimates                                                                                            22

Accounting Estimates - General Enquiries of Management 23

Appendix A – Accounting Estimates 26 

3

P
age 86



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Torridge District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Purpose

The purpose of this report is to contribute towards the effective two-way communication between Torridge District Council’s external auditors and 

Torridge District Council’s Audit and Governance Committee, as 'those charged with governance'. The report covers some important areas of the 

auditor risk assessment where we are required to make inquiries of the Audit and Governance Committee under auditing standards. 

Background

Under International Standards on Auditing (UK), (ISA(UK)) auditors have specific responsibilities to communicate with the Audit and Governance 

Committee. ISA(UK) emphasise the importance of two-way communication between the auditor and the Audit and Governance Committee and also 

specify matters that should be communicated.

This two-way communication assists both the auditor and the Audit and Governance Committee in understanding matters relating to the audit and 

developing a constructive working relationship. It also enables the auditor to obtain information relevant to the audit from the Audit and Governance 

Committee and supports the Audit and Governance Committee in fulfilling its responsibilities in relation to the financial reporting process. 

Communication

As part of our risk assessment procedures we are required to obtain an understanding of management processes and the Council’s oversight of the 

following areas:

• General Enquiries of Management

• Fraud,

• Laws and Regulations,

• Related Parties, 

• Going Concern, and

• Accounting Estimates.

4

P
age 87



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Torridge District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Purpose

This report includes a series of questions on each of these areas and the response we have received from Torridge District Council’s management. 

The Audit and Governance Committee should consider whether these responses are consistent with its understanding and whether there are any 

further comments it wishes to make. 

5

P
age 88



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Torridge District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

General Enquiries of Management

Question Management response

1. What do you regard as the key events or issues that 

will have a significant impact on the financial statements 

for 2021/22?  

Continued processing of business support grants on behalf of Central Government in response to the 

Covid-19 pandemic.

2. Have you considered the appropriateness of the 

accounting policies adopted by Torridge District 

Council?

Have there been any events or transactions that may 

cause you to change or adopt new accounting policies? 

If so, what are they?

Yes.

No.

3. Is there any use of financial instruments, including 

derivatives? If so, please explain
No – just fixed short term treasury deposits arising from cash flow.

4. Are you aware of any significant transaction outside 

the normal course of business? If so, what are they?
Covid-19 Business Support Grant payments.

6

P
age 89



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Torridge District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

General Enquiries of Management

Question Management response

5. Are you aware of any changes in circumstances that 

would lead to impairment of non-current assets? If so, 

what are they?

No.

6. Are you aware of any guarantee contracts? If so, 

please provide further details
No.

7. Are you aware of the existence of loss contingencies 

and/or un-asserted claims that may affect the financial 

statements? If so, please provide further details

No.

8. Other than in house solicitors, can you provide details 

of those solicitors utilised by Torridge District Council 

during the year. Please indicate where they are working 

on open litigation or contingencies from prior years?

St John Chambers (Tim Leader)

Clarke Wilmott

Guildhall Chambers

St John Chambers (Peter Wadsley)

All working on current cases. No cases of significance.

7

P
age 90



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Torridge District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

General Enquiries of Management

Question Management response

9. Have any of the Council’s service providers reported 

any items of fraud, non-compliance with laws and 

regulations or uncorrected misstatements which would 

affect the financial statements? If so, please provide 

further details

No.

10. Can you provide details of other advisors consulted 

during the year and the issue on which they were 

consulted?

SLC – advisors on setting up leisure company.

Ark – advisors on housing.

11. Have you considered and identified assets for which 

expected credit loss provisions may be required under 

IFRS 9, such as debtors (including loans) and 

investments? If so, please provide further details

N/A.

8

P
age 91



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Torridge District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Fraud

Matters in relation to fraud

ISA (UK) 240 covers auditors responsibilities relating to fraud in an audit of financial statements.

The primary responsibility to prevent and detect fraud rests with both the Audit and Governance Committee and management. 

Management, with the oversight of the Audit and Governance Committee, needs to ensure a strong emphasis on fraud prevention and 

deterrence and encourage a culture of honest and ethical behaviour. As part of its oversight, the Audit and Governance Committee should 

consider the potential for override of controls and inappropriate influence over the financial reporting process.

As Torridge District Council’s external auditor, we are responsible for obtaining reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free 

from material misstatement due to fraud or error. We are required to maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit, considering the 

potential for management override of controls.

As part of our audit risk assessment procedures we are required to consider risks of fraud. This includes considering the arrangements 

management has put in place with regard to fraud risks including: 

• assessment that the financial statements could be materially misstated due to fraud,

• process for identifying and responding to risks of fraud, including any identified specific risks, 

• communication with the Audit and Governance Committee regarding its processes for identifying and responding to risks of fraud, and

• communication to employees regarding business practices and ethical behaviour. 

We need to understand how the Audit and Governance Committee oversees the above processes. We are also required to make inquiries 

of both management and the Audit and Governance Committee as to their knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud. These 

areas have been set out in the fraud risk assessment questions below together with responses from Torridge District Council’s 

management. 

9

P
age 92



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Torridge District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Fraud risk assessment

Question Management response

1. Has Torridge District Council assessed the risk of 

material misstatement in the financial statements due to 

fraud?

How has the process of identifying and responding to 

the risk of fraud been undertaken and what are the 

results of this process? 

How do the Council’s risk management processes link to 

financial reporting?

Yes.

The Council updates and reviews annually its risk strategy.

They don’t, other than the risk of financial imbalance is communicated at SMT and to members via the 

budget setting process. The first item on the Corporate Risk Register is ‘A Balanced Budget: The ability 

to set a balanced budget and Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS)’ with the mitigating controls to 

achieve this. The Corporate Risk Register is updated during the year and shared with the Audit & 

Governance Committee. Any risks of financial imbalance are communicated to SMT and Members via 

the budget setting and performance reporting processes.

2. What have you determined to be the classes of 

accounts, transactions and disclosures most at risk to 

fraud? 

Business Support Grants, claims against the Household Crisis fund.

3. Are you aware of any instances of actual, suspected 

or alleged fraud, errors or other irregularities either 

within Torridge District Council as a whole, or within 

specific departments since 1 April 2021? If so, please 

provide details

No.

10

P
age 93



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Torridge District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Fraud risk assessment

Question Management response

4. As a management team, how do you communicate 

risk issues (including fraud) to those charged with 

governance?                                                                                         

Yes.

There is a Corporate Risk Register, 11 service risk registers, and a separate fraud risk register, which are 

shared/reviewed as appropriate. The Corporate Risks Register is reviewed by the Audit & Governance 

Committee at each meeting and emerging risks are highlighted and discussed. The Devon Audit Partnership 

carry out an independent fraud risk assessment every year which the present to the Audit & Governance 

Committee.

5. Have you identified any specific fraud risks? If so, 

please provide details

Do you have any concerns there are areas that are at 

risk of fraud?

Are there particular locations within Torridge District 

Council where fraud is more likely to  occur?

Business Support Grants.

Yes, as above.

The Council operate a zero tolerance approach to fraud and bribery and this is communicated to all staff 

alongside our whistleblowing policy and a regular basis. Our annual Internal Audit Plan is risk assessed and 

we target internal auditing at those areas with the greatest financial activity.

6. What processes do Torridge District Council have in 

place to identify and respond to risks of fraud?
The Anti fraud, Corruption and Bribery Strategy and Whistleblowing policy are reviewed and updated and 

shared with all staff and Members. The annual Internal Plan is focused on preventing fraud. Any new 

initiatives (e.g. COVID business Support Grants) are risk assessed for possible fraud and processes are 

implemented to minimise the risk of fraud.

11

P
age 94



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Torridge District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Fraud risk assessment

Question Management response

7. How do you assess the overall control environment for Torridge 

District Council, including:

• the existence of internal controls, including segregation of 

duties; and

• the process for reviewing the effectiveness the system of 

internal control?  

If internal controls are not in place or not effective where are the 

risk areas and what mitigating actions have been taken?

What other controls are in place to help prevent, deter or detect 

fraud?

Are there any areas where there is a potential for override of 

controls or inappropriate influence over the financial reporting 

process (for example because of undue pressure to achieve 

financial targets)? If so, please provide details

Good.

The Council has well established Financial and Contractual procedural rules.

The effectiveness of the system of internal control is subject to regular audit by the Devon 

Audit Partnership.

Various internal procedures, such as if correspondence received stating a company had 

changed its bank details, Finance officers would ring the company directly to confirm the 

validity of the correspondence before proceeding to update bank account details.

Controls are verified annually by the Devon Audit Partnership. We also have a well 

publicised Whistleblowing processes.

No.

8. Are there any areas where there is potential for misreporting? If 

so, please provide details

No.

12

P
age 95



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Torridge District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Fraud risk assessment
Question Management response

9. How does Torridge District Council communicate 

and encourage ethical behaviours and business 

processes of it’s staff and contractors? 

How do you encourage staff to report their concerns 

about fraud?

What concerns are staff expected to report about 

fraud? Have any significant issues been reported? If 

so, please provide details

Regular reminders in the staff newsletter and Members Bulleting for:

• The Anti Fraud, Corruption and Bribery Strategy

• Whistleblowing Policy

• Nolan principles

Devon Audit Partnership carry out a periodic audit of Culture & Ethics.

The Whistleblowing Policy is communicated via the staff newsletter.

The Council has adopted a zero tolerance approach to fraud and corruption. Staff are encouraged to 

report any instances of fraud or suspected fraud. No significant instances of Fraud reported in 2021/22.  

10. From a fraud and corruption perspective, what 

are considered to be high-risk posts?

How are the risks relating to these posts identified, 

assessed and managed?

Any post with authorisation to purchase/sell goods and services and transfer monies. 

Controls are built in Council Processes as set out in the Financial and Contractual Procedure Rules. 

Managers take responsibility for the governance of their services. The Internal Audit plan ensure that 

controls in higher risk areas are verified.
11. Are you aware of any related party relationships 

or transactions that could give rise to instances of 

fraud? If so, please provide details

How do you mitigate the risks associated with fraud 

related to related party relationships and 

transactions?

No.

Officers and Members are asked to declare any interests and potential conflict of interests and controls 

are in place to prevent such matters (e.g. Council Tax staff cannot access their own or related family 

member accounts).

13

P
age 96



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Torridge District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Fraud risk assessment

Question Management response

12. What arrangements are in place to report fraud 

issues and risks to the Audit and Governance 

Committee? 

How does the Audit and Governance Committee 

exercise oversight over management's processes 

for identifying and responding to risks of fraud and 

breaches of internal control?

What has been the outcome of these arrangements 

so far this year?

Risk is a standard agenda item on Audit & Governance, the Corporate Risks Register and emerging 

risks are reviewed at each meeting. All Devon Audit Partnership internal audit reports are presented to 

Audit & Governance.

A&G sees all internal audit report and can call in management to discuss items of concern from audit 

reports.

A&G have not requested any further oversight/investigation of management processes.

13. Are you aware of any whistle blowing potential 

or complaints by potential whistle blowers? If so, 

what has been your response?

No.

14. Have any reports been made under the Bribery 

Act? If so, please provide details

No.

14

P
age 97



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Torridge District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Law and regulations

Matters in relation to laws and regulations

ISA (UK) 250 requires us to consider the impact of laws and regulations in an audit of the financial statements.

Management, with the oversight of the Audit and Governance Committee, is responsible for ensuring that Torridge District Council's operations are 

conducted in accordance with laws and regulations, including those that determine amounts in the financial statements. 

As auditor, we are responsible for obtaining reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement due to fraud or 

error, taking into account the appropriate legal and regulatory framework. As part of our risk assessment procedures we are required to make 

inquiries of management and the Audit and Governance Committee as to whether the body is in compliance with laws and regulations. Where we 

become aware of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance we need to gain an understanding of the non-compliance and the possible effect 

on the financial statements.

Risk assessment questions have been set out below together with responses from management.

15

P
age 98



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Torridge District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Impact of laws and regulations

Question Management response

1. How does management gain assurance that all relevant laws 

and regulations have been complied with?

What arrangements does Torridge District Council have in 

place to prevent and detect non-compliance with laws and 

regulations?

Are you aware of any changes to the Council’s regulatory 

environment that may have a significant impact on the Council’s 

financial statements?

Financial and Contractual procedural rules.

No.

2. How is the Audit and Governance Committee provided with 

assurance that all relevant laws and regulations have been 

complied with?

Senior Manager Assurance Statements and an annual review of governance arrangements. 

All audit reports are circulated to Members of the A&G Committee and time is allocated at 

Committee to discuss any issues identified.

3. Have there been any instances of non-compliance or 

suspected non-compliance with laws and regulation since 1 

April 2021 with an on-going impact on the 2021/22 financial 

statements? If so, please provide details

No.

4. Are there any actual or potential litigation or claims that 

would affect the financial statements? If so, please provide 

details

No.

16

P
age 99



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Torridge District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Impact of laws and regulations

Question Management response

5. What arrangements does Torridge District 

Council's have in place to identify, evaluate and 

account for litigation or claims? 

Any potential liability claims are communication from the monitoring officer to the Section 151 Officer.

Where significant legal resources are consumed separate job codes are created to capture the council’s

spend and commitments.

6. Have there been any reports from other regulatory        

bodies, such as HM Revenues and Customs, which 

indicate non-compliance? If so, please provide 

details

No.

17

P
age 100



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Torridge District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Related Parties

Matters in relation to Related Parties

Torridge District Council are required to disclose transactions with bodies/individuals that would be classed as related parties.  These may 

include:

■ bodies that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control, or are controlled by Torridge District Council; 

■ associates;

■ joint ventures;

■ a body that has an interest in the authority that gives it significant influence over the Council;

■ key management personnel, and close members of the family of key management personnel, and

■ post-employment benefit plans (pension fund) for the benefit of employees of the Council, or of any body that is a related party of the 

Council.

A disclosure is required if a transaction (or series of transactions) is material on either side, i.e. if a transaction is immaterial from the [type of 

body]’s perspective but material from a related party viewpoint then the Council must disclose it.

ISA (UK) 550 requires us to review your procedures for identifying related party transactions and obtain an understanding of the controls that you 

have established to identify such transactions. We will also carry out testing to ensure the related party transaction disclosures you make in the 

financial statements are complete and accurate. 

18

P
age 101



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Torridge District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Related Parties

Question Management response

1. Have there been any changes in the related 

parties including those disclosed in Torridge District 

Council's 2020/21 financial statements? 

If so please summarise: 

• the nature of the relationship between these 

related parties and Torridge District Council 

whether Torridge District Council has entered 

into or plans to enter into any transactions with 

these related parties

• the type and purpose of these transactions 

No.

2. What controls does Torridge District Council have 

in place to identify, account for and disclose related 

party transactions and relationships?

The Council maintains a register of members and senior officers interests.  An assessment of the 

transactions with these related parties is completed annually. At all Council meetings members have to 

declare if they have an interest in agenda item.

3. What controls are in place to authorise and 

approve significant transactions and arrangements 

with related parties?

Financial and Contractual Procedures rules determine approval limits with the Council.

4. What controls are in place to authorise and 

approve significant transactions outside of the 

normal course of business?

Contract Waiver rules, urgency decision reporting arrangements.

19

P
age 102



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Torridge District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Going Concern

Matters in relation to Going Concern

The audit approach for going concern is based on the requirements of ISA (UK) 570, as interpreted by Practice Note 10: Audit of financial 

statements and regularity of public sector bodies in the United Kingdom (Revised 2020). It also takes into account the National Audit Office's 

Supplementary Guidance Note (SGN) 01: Going Concern – Auditors’ responsibilities for local public bodies.

Practice Note 10 confirms that in many (but not all) public sector bodies, the use of the going concern basis of accounting is not a matter of 

significant focus of the auditor’s time and resources because the applicable financial reporting frameworks envisage that the going concern basis 

for accounting will apply where the body’s services will continue to be delivered by the public sector. In such cases, a material uncertainty related 

to going concern is unlikely to exist. 

For this reason, a straightforward and standardised approach to compliance with ISA (UK) 570 will often be appropriate for public sector bodies. 

This will be a proportionate approach to going concern based on the body’s circumstances and the applicable financial reporting framework. In 

line with Practice Note 10, the auditor’s assessment of going concern should take account of the statutory nature of the body and the fact that the 

financial reporting framework for local government bodies presume going concern in the event of anticipated continuation of provision of the 

services provided by the body. Therefore, the public sector auditor applies a ‘continued provision of service approach’, unless there is clear 

evidence to the contrary. This would also apply even where those services are planned to transfer to another body, as in such circumstances, the 

underlying services will continue. 

For many public sector bodies, the financial sustainability of the body and the services it provides are more likely to be of significant public 

interest than the application of the going concern basis of accounting. Financial sustainability is a key component of value for money work and it 

is through such work that it will be considered. 

P
age 103



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Torridge District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Going Concern
Question Management response

1. What processes and controls does management have in place to 

identify events and / or conditions which may indicate that the statutory 

services being provided by Torridge District Council will no longer 

continue?

The production of the Council’s medium term financial strategy evaluates the 

Council’s Financial resources over a 5 year period, as do its capital strategy.  There 

most recent MTFS produced made no reference to the suspension of statutory 

services.

2. Are management aware of any factors which may mean for Torridge 

District Council that either statutory services will no longer be provided 

or that funding for statutory services will be discontinued? If so, what are 

they?

Not at the present.

3. With regard to the statutory services currently provided by Torridge 

District Council, does Torridge District Council expect to continue to 

deliver them for the foreseeable future, or will they be delivered by 

related public authorities if there are any plans for Torridge District 

Council to cease to exist?

Yes.

4. Are management satisfied that the financial reporting framework 

permits Torridge District Council to prepare its financial statements on a 

going concern basis? Are management satisfied that preparing financial 

statements on a going concern basis will provide a faithful 

representation of the items in the financial statements?

Yes.

P
age 104



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Torridge District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Accounting estimates

Matters in relation to accounting estimates

ISA (UK) 540 (Revised December 2018)  requires auditors to understand and assess a body’s internal controls over accounting estimates, 

including:

• The nature and extent of oversight and governance over management’s financial reporting process relevant to accounting estimates;

• How management identifies the need for and applies specialised skills or knowledge related to accounting estimates;

• How the body’s risk management process identifies and addresses risks relating to accounting estimates;

• The body’s information system as it relates to accounting estimates; 

• The body’s control activities in relation to accounting estimates; and

• How management reviews the outcomes of previous accounting estimates.

As part of this process auditors also need to obtain an understanding of the role of those charged with governance, which is particularly important 

where the estimates have high estimation uncertainty, or require significant judgement. 

Specifically do Audit Committee members:

• Understand the characteristics of the methods and models used to make the accounting estimates and the risks related to them;

• Oversee management’s process for making accounting estimates, including the use of models, and the monitoring activities undertaken by 

management; and

• Evaluate how management made the accounting estimates?

We would ask the Audit Committee to satisfy itself that the arrangements for accounting estimates are adequate. 

22

P
age 105



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Torridge District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Accounting Estimates - General Enquiries of Management

Question Management response

1. What are the classes of transactions, events and 

conditions, that are significant to the financial 

statements that give rise to the need for, or changes in, 

accounting estimate and related disclosures?

Valuation of property and pension liabilities.

2. How does the Council's risk management process 

identify and address risks relating to accounting 

estimates?

Fundamentally for the areas of biggest estimation the Council engages experts – District Valuer for property 

estimations and Barnett Waddington for Pension.

3. How does management identify the methods, 

assumptions or source data, and the need for changes 

in them, in relation to key accounting estimates?

The Council adheres to guidance within the Accounting code of practice, Finance officer attended training 

sessions hosted by Grant Thornton which cover aspects such as accounting estimates.

4. How do management review the outcomes of 

previous accounting estimates?
Large movement on property valuations are queried with the District valuer when the financial statements 

are being prepared.  

5. Were any changes made to the estimation processes 

in 2021/22 and, if so, what was the reason for these?
No.

P
age 106



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Torridge District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Accounting Estimates - General Enquiries of Management
Question Management response

6. How does management identify the need for and 

apply specialised skills or knowledge related to 

accounting estimates?

Yes, Property valuations and pensions.

7. How does the Council determine what control 

activities are needed for significant accounting 

estimates, including the controls at any service 

providers or management experts? 

The areas of significant estimation which fall outside the expertise of Council officers are those where 

external experts are commissioned. 

8. How does management monitor the operation of 

control activities related to accounting estimates, 

including the key controls at any service providers or 

management experts? 

Valuations are reviewed and scrutinised in the context of the property portfolio and market conditions. Any 

large valuation variances are investigated.

9. What is the nature and extent of oversight and 

governance over management’s financial reporting 

process relevant to accounting estimates, including:

- Management’s process for making significant 

accounting estimates

- The methods and models used

- The resultant accounting estimates included in the 

financial statements.

Oversight is provided by the Audit & Governance committee allied to external audit of the statement of 

accounts. 

P
age 107



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Torridge District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Accounting Estimates - General Enquiries of Management

Question Management response

10. Are management aware of any transactions, 

events, conditions (or changes in these) that may 

give rise to recognition or disclosure of significant 

accounting estimates that require significant 

judgement (other than those in Appendix A)? If so, 

what are they?

No.

11. Why are management satisfied that their 

arrangements for the accounting estimates, as 

detailed in Appendix A, are reasonable?

Yes.

12. How is the Audit and Governance Committee 

provided with assurance that the arrangements for 

accounting estimates are adequate ?

Audit & Governance ultimately receive a report from the Council’s external auditors regarding the 

assurance that can be provided in relation to accounting estimates used in the production of the financial 

statements.

25

P
age 108



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Torridge District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Appendix A Accounting Estimates

26

Estimate Method / model used to make 

the estimate

Controls used to identify 

estimates

Whether 

management 

have used an 

expert

Underlying assumptions:

- Assessment of degree of uncertainty

- Consideration of alternative 

estimates

Has there 

been a

change in 

accounting

method in 

year?

Property, plant 

&

equipment

Valuations

Valuation basis depends on 

asset type and use. E.g. Market 

Value Direct Replacement or 

Existing use basis.

Use of professional Valuer. 

Review of valuations by 

Property manager and fixed 

asset accountant.

Yes. Assumptions reviewed as part of 

reasonableness, e.g. valuations based on 

rental income based on actuals where 

possible. Alternative estimates considered 

where appropriate, e.g investment 

property valuations vs other methods 

(DRC).

No.

Estimated 

remaining 

useful lives 

of PPE

Asset lives assessed with 

regards to recent history for 

vehicles (e.g. refuse manager) 

and IT equipment. District valuer 

assess the remaining life for 

Property based on their 

condition/use.

With regards to Plant & 

Equipment assets reference 

is made to the opinion of 

the relevant manager; e.g. 

The Refuse Manager has 

indicated that refuse 

vehicles have a useful life 

of 7 years.

Yes for 

Property.

Asset lives reviewed for reasonableness. No.

Depreciation 

and 

Amortisation 

Per depreciation policy and 

useful life.

All appropriate assets 

depreciated per FAR.

N/A. Reviewed for reasonableness along with 

UEL.

No.

Impairments Per revalation/impairment policy 

and procedure.

Professional Valuer Used. Yes for 

valuations and 

impairments.

- Reasons for significant valuation 

changes are always challenged with the 

valuer.

No.

P
age 109



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Torridge District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Appendix A Accounting Estimates

27

Estimate Method / model used to 

make the estimate

Controls used to 

identify estimates

Whether 

management 

have used an 

expert

Underlying assumptions:

- Assessment of degree of uncertainty

- Consideration of alternative 

estimates

Has there 

been a

change in 

accounting

method in 

year?

Measurement 

of Financial 

Instruments.

N/A only have short term fixed 

treasury deposits.

N/A. N/A. N/A. No.

Provisions for 

liabilities.
Based on nature of liability. Yes. Dependant on 

liability.

Yes – Dependant on liability. No.

Bad Debt 

Provision.
Based on past historical 

performance and age of debt.

Comparison to previous 

years, with regards to 

Council Tax and NNDR 

reference to other 

Council, particularly 

Devon Business Rate 

Pool.

LG Futures 

have provided 

input into bad 

debt provision 

and appeals 

provision 

pertaining to 

Business rates.

Comparison to previous years. No.

Accruals. Accruals posted for all 

individual items over £5K.

Items from department 

managers, and actual 

spend.

Yes in the form 

of the 

department 

mangers.

Accrued items are actuals e.g. late 

invoices etc.

No.

P
age 110



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Torridge District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Appendix A Accounting Estimates

28

Estimate Method / model used to 

make the estimate

Controls used to 

identify estimates

Whether 

management 

have used an 

expert

Underlying assumptions:

- Assessment of degree of uncertainty

- Consideration of alternative 

estimates

Has there 

been a

change in 

accounting

method in 

year?

Non Adjusting 

events –

events after 

the balance 

sheet date 

Depends on the nature of 

event.

Yes as such events will 

be individually 

identified.

Depends on 

event.

Event always assessed. No.

Pension Fund  

(LGPS) 

Actuarial 

gains/losses

As per Actuarial Report. Data provided to 

Pension Actualists' is 

signed off by Finance 

Department.

Yes. As per professional advice provided. No.

Credit Loss 

Impairment 

Allowances

N/A. N/A. No. N/A. No.

Level 2 and 3 

investments
N/A. N/A. No. N/A. No.

P
age 111



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to 

one or more member firms, as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member 

firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not 

provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

grantthornton.co.uk

P
age 112



       . 

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE – FORWARD PLAN 2021/22 

 

 Cycle 

1 

Cycle 2 Cycle 

3 

Cycle 4 Cycle 

5 

Cycle 6 Cycle 7 Cycle 

8 

  27/7/21  05/10/21  18/01/22 29/03/22 
12/04/2022 

 

         

        

Audit 
Committee 

   
Effectiveness of 
A&G Committee 

 Appt. of Auditors – 

recommendation to 
then be taken to FC 

(DH) 

 

 

Risk 
Management 

 Corporate Risk    Corporate Risk Corporate Risk 
 

Internal Audit 

        

 Audit Report Issued  
Audit Report 

Issued 
 Audit Report Issued 

Audit Report 
Issued 

 

 
Progress with agreed 

actions 
 

Progress with 
agreed actions 

 
Progress with agreed 

actions 
Progress with 
agreed actions 

 

       
Draft Audit Plan 

2021/22 

 

Accounts 

 
Draft Statement of 

Accounts 
 

Presentation & 

Approval of 
Accounts & AGS 

 
Preparation for final 

account 
 

 

 
Annual Governance 

Statement 
 

Report on  
Going Concern 

  
 

 

   
Letter of  

Representation 

  
 

 

   
Final Annual 
Governance 

  
 

 

External 
Audit 

 Update Report    Update Report Update Report  

   
Audit Finding 

Report 
 

Annual Certification 

Letter 

External Audit 

Plan 

 

   
   

 
 

Note: At the end of each meeting, should it be deemed desirable, Members may meet with the External Auditors privately. 

P
age 113

A
genda Item

 13


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes

	6 DAP Audit Reports Issued to Date
	7 Audit Plan 2022-2023
	8 Annual Internal Audit Report 2021-22
	9 Audit Actions
	10 Grant Thornton Update Report
	11 Grant Thornton External Audit Plan
	12 Grant Thornton - informing the audit risk assessment
	13 Forward Plan

